
 

 

 
 

 Neuadd y Sir 
Y Rhadyr 
Brynbuga 

NP15 1GA 
 

Dydd Llun, 15 Gorffennaf 2024 
 

Hysbysiad a Gyfarfod : 
 

Pwyllgor Craffu Pobl 
 

Dydd Mawrth, 23ain Gorffennaf, 2024 at 10.00 am, 
Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, Y Rhadyr, Brynbuga,  

 
 

Nodwch y cynhelir rhag gyfarfod 30 munud cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod ar gyfer aelodau’r pwyllgor 
 

AGENDA 
 

Rhif yr 
Eitem 

Eitem Tudalen
nau 

 

1.   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 

 
 

2.   Datganiadau o Fuddiant 

 
 

3.   Fforwm Agored i'r Cyhoedd 
 
Canllawiau ~ Fforwm Agored Cyhoeddus y Pwyllgor Dethol  

 
Mae ein cyfarfodydd Pwyllgor Dethol yn cael eu ffrydio'n fyw a bydd 
dolen i'r ffrwd fyw ar gael ar dudalen gyfarfod gwefan Cyngor Sir Fynwy 

Os hoffech rannu eich barn ar unrhyw gynigion sy'n cael eu trafod gan 
Bwyllgorau Dethol, gallwch gyflwyno eich sylwadau drwy ddefnyddio'r 
ffurflen hon  

 Rhannwch eich barn drwy lanlwytho ffeil fideo neu sain (uchafswm o 4 
munud); neu  

 Cyflwynwch sylwadau ysgrifenedig (drwy Microsoft Word, uchafswm o 
500 gair)  

Bydd angen i chi gofrestru ar gyfer cyfrif Fy Sir Fynwy er mwyn 
cyflwyno'r ymateb neu ddefnyddio eich manylion mewngofnodi os 
ydych wedi cofrestru o'r blaen. 

Y dyddiad cau ar gyfer cyflwyno sylwadau i'r Cyngor yw 5pm dri 

 

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
https://iweb.itouchvision.com/portal/itouchvision/r/customer/category_link?cuid=AF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0&lang=CY&p0_language=CY&p201_language=CY&request=SET_LANG_201
https://iweb.itouchvision.com/portal/itouchvision/r/customer/category_link?cuid=AF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0&lang=CY&p0_language=CY&p201_language=CY&request=SET_LANG_201
https://iweb.itouchvision.com/portal/itouchvision/r/customer/category_link?cuid=AF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0&lang=CY&p0_language=CY&p201_language=CY&request=SET_LANG_201


 

 

diwrnod gwaith clir cyn y cyfarfod. Os bydd y sylwadau a dderbynnir yn 
fwy na 30 munud, bydd detholiad o'r rhain, yn seiliedig ar thema, yn 
cael eu rhannu yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Dethol.  Bydd yr holl 
sylwadau a dderbynnir ar gael i gynghorwyr cyn y cyfarfod. 

Os hoffech fynychu un o'n cyfarfodydd i siarad dan y Fforwm Agored i'r 
Cyhoedd, bydd angen i chi roi tri diwrnod o hysbysiad i ni drwy gysylltu 
â Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk.Y cadeirydd sy’n penderfynu faint o 
amser a roddir i bob aelod o’r cyhoedd i siarad, ond i’n galluogi i roi 
cyfle i nifer o siaradwyr, gofynnwn nad yw cyfraniadau yn hirach na 3 
munud. 

Os hoffech awgrymu pynciau i un o'n Pwyllgorau Dethol graffu arnynt 
yn y dyfodol, gwnewch hynny drwy e-bostio 
Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 

 
4.   Arolygiad Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru 

 

Adolygu'r adroddiad arolygu diweddar.   

 

1 - 38 

5.   Polisi Trafnidiaeth o'r Cartref i'r Ysgol 
 

Cynnal gwaith craffu cyn penderfynu ar y cynigion sy'n destun ymgynghoriad.  

 

To Follow 

6.   Blaenraglen Waith a Rhestr Weithredu'r Pwyllgor Craffu Pobl 

 
39 - 44 

7.   Cynllunydd Gwaith y Cyngor a'r Cabinet 

 
45 - 68 

8.   Cyfarfod nesaf: 24ain Medi 2024 am 10.00am 

 
 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Prif Weithredwr 

 
 

 

mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk


 

 

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 

 

MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL A GANLYN: 
 
County Councillor Jan Butler, Goetre Fawr;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Christopher Edwards, St. Kingsmark;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Simon Howarth, Llanelly Hill;, Independent Group 
County Councillor Penny Jones, Raglan;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Maureen Powell, Pen Y Fal;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Sue Riley, Bulwark and Thornwell;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Maria  Stevens, Severn;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Jackie Strong, Caldicot Cross;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Laura Wright, Grofield;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Jill Bond, West End;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Rachel Buckler, Devauden;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor John Crook, Magor East with Undy;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Catherine Fookes, Town;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Meirion Howells, Llanbadoc & Usk;, Independent 
County Councillor Alistair Neill, Gobion Fawr;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Paul Pavia, Mount Pleasant;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Peter Strong, Rogiet;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Ann Webb, St Arvans;, Welsh Conservative Party 

  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 

 
 
Gwybodaeth I’r Cyhoedd 

 

Mynediad i gopïau papur o agendâu ac adroddiadau  
Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n mynychu 
cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219. Dylid nodi fod yn 
rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu copi caled o'r agenda hwn i 
chi. 
 
 Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein  
Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n dilyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i www.monmouthshire.gov.uk 
neu drwy ymweld â'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r 
ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatáu i gael 
eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor.  
 
Y Gymraeg Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad cyn y 
cyfarfod os dymunwch siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich anghenion. 



 

 

 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 
i ddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob cam o'u bywydau. 
 
Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt  
 
• Lle teg i fyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;  
• Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud cyfraniad cadarnhaol at fynd i'r 

afael â'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;  
• Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall busnesau dyfu a datblygu;  
• Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel ynddo;  
• Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu gwerthfawrogi;   
• Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.          
 
Ein gwerthoedd 
 

 Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus 

 Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a adeiladwyd ar 
barch un at y llall. 

 Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad effeithlon 
ac effeithiol. 

 Gwaith tîm: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar ein 
cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau. 

 Caredigrwydd – Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw, gan roi 
pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a’r cysylltiadau sydd gennym â’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob rhyngweithio. 

 



 

 

 Canllaw Cwestiynau Craffu Sir Fynwy   
Rôl y Cyn-gyfarfod   

1. Pam mae'r Pwyllgor yn craffu ar hyn? (cefndir, materion allweddol)  

2. Beth yw rôl y Pwyllgor a pha ganlyniad mae’r Aelodau am ei gyflawni?  

3. A oes digon o wybodaeth i gyflawni hyn? Os nad oes, pwy allai ddarparu hyn?     
  

- Cytuno ar y drefn holi a pha Aelodau fydd yn arwain  

- Cytuno ar gwestiynau i swyddogion a chwestiynau i Aelod y Cabinet  
 

Cwestiynau’r Cyfarfod   



 

 

Craffu ar Berfformiad  
  

1. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu â'r 

blynyddoedd blaenorol?  Ydy e’n well/yn 

waeth? Pam? 

 

2. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu â 

chynghorau eraill/darparwyr gwasanaethau 

eraill?  Ydy e'n well/yn waeth? Pam?  
  

3. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu â 

thargedau gosodedig?  Ydy e’n well/yn 

waeth? Pam?   
  

4. Sut cafodd targedau perfformiad eu gosod?  

Ydyn nhw'n ddigon heriol/realistig?  
  

5. Sut mae defnyddwyr gwasanaethau/y 

cyhoedd/partneriaid yn gweld perfformiad y 

gwasanaeth?  
  

6. A fu unrhyw awdid ac archwiliadau 

diweddar? Beth oedd y canfyddiadau?  
  

7. Sut mae'r gwasanaeth yn cyfrannu at 

wireddu amcanion corfforaethol?    
  

8. A yw gwelliant/dirywiad mewn perfformiad 

yn gysylltiedig i gynnydd/ostyngiad mewn 

adnodd?  

Pa gapasiti sydd yna i wella?    

Craffu ar Bolisi   
  

1. Ar bwy mae’r polisi  yn effeithio ~ yn 

uniongyrchol ac yn anuniongyrchol?  Pwy 

fydd yn elwa fwyaf/leiaf?      
  

2. Beth yw barn defnyddwyr gwasanaeth 

/rhanddeiliaid? Pa ymgynghoriad gafodd ei 

gyflawni? A wnaeth y broses ymgynghori 

gydymffurfio ag Egwyddorion Gunning?   

A yw rhanddeiliaid yn credu y bydd yn 

sicrhau’r canlyniad a ddymunir?  
  

3. Beth yw barn y gymuned gyfan – safbwynt 

y ‘trethdalwr’?  
  

4. Pa ddulliau a ddefnyddiwyd i ymgynghori 

â’r rhanddeiliaid? A oedd y broses yn 

galluogi pawb â chyfran i ddweud eu 

dweud?  
  

5. Pa ymarfer ac opsiynau sydd wedi eu 

hystyried wrth ddatblygu/adolygu'r polisi 

hwn? Pa dystiolaeth sydd i hysbysu beth 

sy'n gweithio? A yw'r polisi yn ymwneud â 

maes lle mae diffyg ymchwil cyhoeddedig 

neu dystiolaeth arall?  
  

6. A yw'r polisi'n ymwneud â maes lle ceir 

anghydraddoldebau hysbys?  
  

7. A yw’r polisi hwn yn cyd-fynd â'n 

hamcanion corfforaethol, fel y'u diffinnir yn 

ein cynllun corfforaethol? A yw'n cadw at 

ein Safonau Iaith Gymraeg?  
  

8. A gafodd yr holl ddatblygu cynaliadwy, y 

goblygiadau cydraddoldeb a diogelu 

perthnasol eu hystyried?  
 



 

 

  Er enghraifft, beth yw'r gweithdrefnau sydd 

angen bod ar waith i amddiffyn plant?  
  

9. Faint fydd y gost hon i'w gweithredu a pha 

ffynhonnell ariannu sydd wedi'i nodi?  
  

10. Sut fydd perfformiad y polisi yn cael ei 

weithredu a’r effaith yn cael ei gwerthuso?  

Cwestiynau Cyffredinol:  

Grymuso Cymunedau  

• Sut ydym ni'n cynnwys cymunedau lleol a'u grymuso i ddylunio a darparu gwasanaethau i 

gyd-fynd ag angen lleol?  

• A ydym ni’n cael trafodaethau rheolaidd gyda chymunedau am flaenoriaethau'r 

gwasanaeth a pha lefel o wasanaeth y gall y cyngor fforddio ei ddarparu yn y dyfodol?  

• A yw’r gwasanaeth yn gweithio gyda dinasyddion i egluro rôl gwahanol bartneriaid wrth 

ddarparu gwasanaeth a rheoli disgwyliadau?   

• A oes fframwaith a phroses gymesur ar waith ar gyfer asesu perfformiad ar y cyd, gan 

gynnwys o safbwynt dinesydd, ac a oes gennych chi drefniadau atebolrwydd i gefnogi 

hyn?   

• A oes Asesiad Effaith Cydraddoldeb wedi’i gynnal? Os felly a all yr Arweinydd a’r Cabinet 

/Uwch Swyddogion roi copïau i’r Aelodau ac eglurhad manwl o’r Asesiad o’r Effaith ar 

Gydraddoldeb (EQIA) a gynhaliwyd mewn perthynas â’r cynigion hyn?   

• A all yr Arweinydd a’r Cabinet/Uwch Swyddogion sicrhau aelodau bod y cynigion hyn yn 

cydymffurfio â deddfwriaeth Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol? A yw'r cynigion yn 

cydymffurfio â Chynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol yr Awdurdod Lleol?  
  

Galwadau’r Gwasanaeth   

• Sut fydd newid polisi a deddfwriaeth yn effeithio ar y ffordd mae'r cyngor yn gweithredu?  

• A ydym ni wedi ystyried demograffeg ein cyngor a sut bydd hyn yn effeithio ar ddarparu 

gwasanaethau a chyllid yn y dyfodol?  

• A ydych chi wedi adnabod ac ystyried y tueddiadau tymor hir a allai effeithio ar eich maes  

gwasanaeth, pa effaith allai'r tueddiadau hyn ei chael ar eich gwasanaeth/allai eich 

gwasanaeth ei gael ar y tueddiadau hyn, a beth sy'n cael ei wneud mewn ymateb?  
  

Cynllunio Ariannol   

• A oes gennym ni gynlluniau ariannol canolig a hirdymor cadarn yn eu lle?   

• A ydym ni’n cysylltu cyllidebau â chynlluniau a chanlyniadau ac adrodd yn effeithiol ar y 

rhain?  
  

Gwneud arbedion a chynhyrchu incwm  

• A oes gennym ni’r strwythurau cywir ar waith i sicrhau bod ein dulliau effeithlonrwydd, 

gwelliant a thrawsnewid yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd i sicrhau'r arbedion mwyaf posibl?  



 

 

• Sut ydym ni'n gwneud y mwyaf o incwm? A ydym ni wedi cymharu polisïau eraill y cyngor 

i sicrhau'r incwm mwyaf posibl ac wedi ystyried yn llawn y goblygiadau ar ddefnyddwyr 

gwasanaeth?     

• A oes gennym ni gynllun gweithlu sy'n ystyried capasiti, costau, a sgiliau'r gweithlu 

gwirioneddol yn erbyn y gweithlu a ddymunir?   
  

Cwestiynau i’w gofyn o fewn blwyddyn i’r penderfyniad:   

• A gafodd canlyniadau arfaethedig y cynnig eu cyflawni neu a oedd canlyniadau eraill?     

• A oedd yr effeithiau wedi'u cyfyngu i'r grŵp yr oeddech chi ar y dechrau yn meddwl 

fyddai wedi cael ei effeithio h.y. pobl hŷn, neu a gafodd eraill eu heffeithio e.e. pobl ag 

anableddau, rhieni â phlant ifanc?  

• A yw'r penderfyniad yn dal i fod y penderfyniad cywir neu a oes angen gwneud 

addasiadau?  



 

 

Cwestiynau i'r Pwyllgor ar ddiwedd y cyfarfod …  

A oes gennym ni’r wybodaeth angenrheidiol i ffurfio casgliadau/i wneud argymhellion i'r 

pwyllgor gwaith, cyngor, partneriaid eraill?  Os nad oes, a oes angen i ni:  

(i) Ymchwilio i’r mater yn fwy manwl?  

(ii) Gael rhagor o wybodaeth gan dystion eraill - Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol, arbenigwr 

annibynnol, aelodau o’r gymuned, defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, cyrff rheoleiddio… 

Cytuno ar gamau pellach sydd i'w cymryd o fewn amserlen/adroddiad monitro yn y dyfodol. 
  

 



 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 



 

 
  

SUBJECT:  Care Inspectorate Wales Inspection of Children’s Services 

MEETING:  People Scrutiny Committee 

DATE:  23 July 2024 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All 

  
1. PURPOSE:  
 
1.1 To provide members of People Scrutiny Committee the opportunity to 

scrutinise Children’s Services following a Performance Evaluation Inspection 

undertaken by Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW). 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
  
2.1 For members of People Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise the CIW inspection 

report and provide comment and feedback to Senior Council Leaders and the 

Cabinet Member for Social Care, Safeguarding and Accessible Health 

Services.  

 

2.2 For members to scrutinise the Service response to the inspection report and 

the actions taken to date. 

 
  
3.  KEY ISSUES:  

3.1 In February 2024 Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) carried out a performance    

evaluation inspection of Monmouthshire County Council's Children’s Services 

on behalf of Welsh Ministers. The purpose was to review the Local Authority’s 

performance in exercising its social services duties and functions in line with 

legislation using the principles of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) 

Act 2014. 

3.2 In particular, the inspection focused on children’s experience of the service; 

the outcomes that are achieved; on-going service improvement and 

development; and how the service manages opportunities and risks within its 

operational and strategic planning.  

3.3 The inspection was undertaken by 4 inspectors and involved 4 weeks of pre-

inspection work and a week of field work when the inspectors were on-site. 

The inspectors reviewed 34 children’s files, 6 of which were tracked in detail. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



The inspectors held focus groups and surveys with staff members, partner 

organisations and families, and where possible spoke directly to children and 

foster carers. During the pre-inspection period the inspectors reviewed 

performance data and key service documents.  

3.4 The inspection report was published at the end of April 2024. The service was 

broadly pleased with the findings and felt that positive aspects of practice 

were recognised particularly in respect of children looked after, family support, 

and children’s participation. Positive leadership and good morale within the 

service were also highlighted and the inspection confirmed that the service 

had a good understanding of its relative strengths and difficulties.  

3.5 Within any inspection there will be areas for improvement. Particular areas 

identified for further attention and action included the impact of increased 

demand; ensuring that a strengths-based approach informs the initial stages 

of child protection process when appropriate; ensuring that direct work with 

children forms part of the case record and strengthening quality assurance.  

3.6 The overall outcome of the inspection is that CIW expects the Local Authority 

to take appropriate action to address and improve areas as identified and 

share good practice with other bodies where relevant. CIW intend to monitor 

progress through routine engagement with the service, rather than through 

any special measures.  

3.7 In response to the inspection, Children’s Services has reviewed its existing 

plans to ensure they align with the findings and has begun to implement some 

actions around key areas. Notably this includes: 

- Building in some additional leadership capacity 

- Revising and re-launching training around the practice framework ‘Keeping 

Children Safe’ 

- Reviewing referral patterns into the service  

- Putting steps in place to support practitioners with statutory compliance. 

 

 

4. EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES 
SOCIAL JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING):  
 

4.1 Improvements and developments made within Children’s Services has a 
positive impact on children and young people aged under 18. The service has 
a strong preventative agenda and seeks to ensure that all children are 
supported to get a good start in life and achieve their personal health and 

Page 2



wellbeing outcomes. The service works in partnership with a number of key 
agencies and provides integrated care support to children and families.  

  
5. REASONS:  
  
 5.1 To share the outcomes of CIW’s performance evaluation of children’s services 

with Scrutiny Committee in an open and transparent manner. 
 
 

6.  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:  
  

There are no additional or specific resource implications associated with this 
report. The children’s services budget is allocated and monitored through the 
usual Council processes.   

 

 

7. CONSULTEES:  
  

Children’s Services Leadership Team 
Cabinet 
Strategic Leadership Team  

 
 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:  
  

CIW Performance Evaluation Inspection Report (appendix 1) 
 
 

9.  AUTHORs:  
 

Jane Rodgers, Chief Officer – Social Care, Safeguarding & Health  
 
10.  CONTACT DETAILS:  
  
E-mail: janerodgers@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

   
  
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Monmouthshire County Council
Performance Evaluation Inspection

Children’s Services
Undertaken Feb 2024
Published April 2024

P
age 5



Scope and Purpose

• To review the Local Authority’s performance in exercising its social services 
duties and functions in line with legislation
• Principles of the SSWBA: 

• People (Voice & Control)
• Prevention
• Wellbeing
• Partnerships

• Focus on children’s experience
• Outcomes of people’s contact with the Local Authority
• Plans for service development and improvement
• How the Local Authority manages opportunity and risk in its planning and 

delivery of social care at individual, operational and strategic levels

P
age 6



Methodology

• 4 inspectors completed 4 weeks of pre-inspection work and a week of field work
• 34 social care records, 6 of which were tracked in more detail to understand the person’s 

experience in more depth
• Tracking included having conversations with the child / young person, their family or 

carers, allocated social worker, their line-managed and other professionals involved
• Surveys were issued to workforce, partner organisations and families
• Specific engagement with 6 Children Looked After and 8 foster carers. 
• Interviews with Children’s Services workforce, partner organisations from statutory and 

third sector agencies
• 81 individuals altogether
• Review of service documentation including service data and KPIs, service plans, 

operational procedures, strategic documents, complaints / compliments report etc

P
age 7



Next Steps

• CIW routine monitoring 
• Report shared and discussed with Cabinet 
• Shared with the children’s services workforce and partners including 

the Corporate Parenting Panel
• Brought into People Scrutiny Committee
• Inspection action plan in place and being implemented

P
age 8



Summary – positives
• Recognised significant challenges faced by all LAs e.g. demand, complexity, 

budgetary pressures, recruitment.
• Mention was made of the work done to achieve safe reduction of CLA and 

plans in place to respond to eliminate agenda {decrease in the number of 
CLA of 2.0%, compared to an increase of 0.8% nationally}
• Positive on-going development and improvement of family support 

services was recognised, and that a preventative approach underpinned 
the whole service
• Positive team spirit led by motivated, accessible, and supportive managers 
at all levels with the majority of staff saying they would recommend 
working for MCC Children's Services

“MCC leaders and staff are proud of the service they provide to children and families. Leaders have a 
good understanding of the service strengths and areas for improvement. Service development plans 
are in place which address national demands and the challenges facing public sector organisations.”

P
age 9



Summary – areas for improvement

• Concerns raised over compliance with statutory requirements for 
safeguarding children specifically the timeliness of child protection visits 
and child protection case conferences 
• Reported a renewed focus on practice but more work to be done to ensure 

practice is consistent across the service [particularly in the earlier parts of 
the child protection process] and ensuring that QA is in place. 
• Areas for attention:

• impact of demand at the ‘front-door’ 
• aspects of child protection 
• specific elements of practice
• strengthening quality assurance
• workforce planning

P
age 10



Front-door
• Front-door deals with new contacts and when required 

manages CP inquiries (S47s) and holds a case until the initial 
child protection conference
• Context of high demand and volume
• Impact on workforce
• Impact on practice, specifically lost opportunities for strengths-

based approaches early on and over cautious approach to risk
Specific actions in progress:
• Strengthening data analytics to understand referral patterns and what this is 

telling us so that we can engage with referring agencies
• This will also help ensure we have the right level of resource at the front-door
• Re-focus on practice framework ‘Keeping Children Safe’
• Development of regional threshold document

P
age 11



Demand Context

• The number of contacts received (4,452 per 100,000) was higher than the national 
average (4,223 per 100,000) as of March 2024. 

• There was an increase in the number of contacts received of 29.7%, compared to an 
11.0% increase nationally, from April 2023 to March 2024 (7071 compared 
with 5825)

• The number of child protection enquiries received (746 per 100,000) was higher than 
the national average (289 per 100,000) as of March 2024. 

• The number of child protection enquiries received increased in Monmouthshire 
by 68.8%, compared to an increase of 26.2% nationally. 

P
age 12



Child Protection Stat Visits -
 Compliance  & Quality Assurance
• A stat visit is when a social worker sees child who is on the CPR. They are defined 

in the regulations and must be completed within specific timescales.
• Stat visits are not the only way in which children on the CPR are 'seen’
• 67% compliance at the time of the inspection compared with national average 

73%
Specific Actions:
• Understanding, supporting, recording, auditing
• Providing additional individual support and regular training slots around the stat 
framework 
• Resolve recording issues 
• Ensuring accurate management information
• Audit programme being implemented

P
age 13



Child Protection Conferences
• Child Protection Conferences take place when a child is assessed as being at on-going risk 

of significant harm; a CP plan is developed and implemented through a Core Group with 
reviews and eventual De-registration managed through the CP conference process. 

• Issues were identified regarding timeliness and variability in how the conferences were 
managed, specifically in respect of parental involvement.

• Some plans were found to be service led rather than outcome focused
Specific Actions
• Strengthen the role of the Safeguarding Unit in providing increased oversight for children 

from S47 (child protection inquiry) to Core Group and development of the CP plan
• Scale down the use of external CP chairs and re-emphasise practice expectations for 

chairs
• Reclarify business processes and expectations around timeliness of conference reports.

P
age 14



Child Protection Practice
• Following initial conference CP work is undertaken by the Family Support 

and Protection Team
• Significant positive practice identified particularly within pre-court (CP) 

work
• Interface with the front door takes some time to re-align
• But numbers have stayed strong (89 at end of year represents slight 

reduction despite demand at front door) and a very low re-referral rate 
following de-registration (0.7%)
• Managing complexity and risk is a major challenge and puts significant 

pressure on the workforce
Specific Actions: 
• Re-focus on practice framework ‘Keeping Children Safe’ framework
• Look at how we pull forward ‘strengths-based interventions’ that could 
make a difference early on in CP process

P
age 15



Workforce & Leadership Capacity
• Positive recognition workforce planning is given constant strategic 
attention with some innovative practice and high-quality campaigns 
• All Wales Pledge has supported agency exit planning
• Where we focus leadership time and attention makes a real 

difference (e.g. safe reduction of CLA and placement development)
• We have built-in some additional leadership capacity to help with the 

current leadership challenges
• Sufficient high-quality workforce makes a real difference in long-term 

(financial) sustainability and significantly improves outcomes for 
children 
• Plan is to undertake a wider capacity / resource review over this year 
to re-look at the structure overall and demand around key areas

P
age 16



Confidence Levels & Key Risks
• Broadly happy with many positives, despite the challenging context
• Confirmed we had a good understanding of our own strengths / areas for 
improvement – whilst providing additional perspective and opportunity to ensure 
we are refining and prioritising service plans appropriately
• Many of the issues raised already represented in existing service plans / work in 

progress
• Positive experience of the process and an open and engaged relationship with 

our lead inspector
Key risks

• Connecting Care
• Eliminate
• Budgetary context and range of financial pressures
• Fragility across the service
• Resourcing and competing priorities and challenges

P
age 17



Summary of key actions so far…..
• Appointed a new SM to work strategically to address some of the 

challenges at the front-door
• Put in some additional temporary capacity at the front-door
• Launched the threshold document to assist referring agencies
• Appointed of a new SM to take forward placement development
• Re-launched the Keeping Children Safe practice framework with 2 

days of mandatory training for all practitioners over the summer
• Put in place additional support and knowledge building for social 

workers around statutory compliance
• Improved compliance with CP stat visits [up to 79.9% within 

timescales at Q1] 

P
age 18



Key Achievements Recognised
• Children’s meaningful participation in service development and having a voice
• There is a coherent approach to early help and prevention 
• Family support and preventative services work closely with social workers, to ensure 

families benefit from outcome-focused interventions
• Foster carers have good quality information and feel listened to
• Nearly all reviews for CLA are held within statutory timescales and foster carers describe 
the child’s view as being prominent within the review process.

• Managers provide reflective spaces to support workforce resilience and team morale
• Positive practice within the ‘public law outline’ supports robust analysis and 
proportionate decision making in the latter stages of a child’s journey through 
safeguarding processes

• Social workers have access to range of multi-disciplinary perspectives
• Leaders understand the needs of people in their area and provide good strategic 
direction to meet these needs and service demands.”

• Most staff would recommend working for Monmouthshire

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  
Monmouthshire County Council 

Performance Evaluation Inspection 
Children’s Services 

 

February 2024 

Page 21



 

 Mae’r ddogfen yma hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. 

This document is also available in Welsh.  
 

   © Crown copyright 2024      WG49881       Digital ISBN 978-1-83577-991-0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 22



 

3 
 

Introduction  

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) carried out a performance evaluation inspection of  

Monmouthshire County Council's (MCC/the local authority) Social Services in February 

2024. This was an inspection of children’s services only, as adult services received an 

inspection in July 2022. The purpose of this inspection was to review the local authority’s 

performance in exercising its social services duties and functions in line with legislation, on 

behalf of Welsh Ministers. We sought to answer the following questions aligned under the 

principles of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 (The 2014 Act). 

 

1. People - voice and control 

How well is the local authority ensuring all people are equal partners who have  

voice, choice and control over their lives and can achieve what matters to them? 

 

How well do professionals ensure children’s lived experience and individual needs 

are understood and included in decision making? 

 

2. Prevention 

How well is the local authority ensuring the need for care and support is minimised,  

and the escalation of need is prevented whilst ensuring that the best possible  

outcomes for people are achieved?  

 

How well do leaders and managers understand the experiences of children and 

families that need help and protection?  

 

3. Well-being 

How well is the local authority ensuring that children are protected and safeguarded  

from abuse, neglect and any other type of harm? 

 

Do children receive the right help and protection because of the application of 

appropriate thresholds and effective information-sharing? 

 

4. Partnerships  

How well is the local authority able to assure itself effective partnerships are in place  

to commission and deliver fully integrated, high quality, sustainable outcomes for  

people? 

 

How well are children supported and protected through effective multi-agency 

arrangements? 

Page 23



 

4 
 

The scope of the inspection included:  

 

• evaluation of the experience of children at the point of performance evaluation 

inspection  

• evaluation of the experience and outcomes people achieve through their contact with 

services 

• evidence of the local authority and partners having learnt lessons from their recent 

experiences and actions taken/plans for service development and improvement 

• consideration of how the local authority manages opportunity and risk in its planning 

and delivery of social care at individual, operational and strategic levels 

 

1. Summary 

1.1 MCC leaders and staff are proud of the service they provide to children and 

families. Leaders have a good understanding of the service strengths and areas 

for improvement. Service development plans are in place which address 

national demands and the challenges facing public sector organisations.  

 

1.2 Like many local authorities across Wales, MCC experience challenges in 

relation to the provision and delivery of social care. Most of these are driven by 

pressures arising from the national pandemic recovery, including an increased 

demand for service provision and the rising complexity of people’s needs. 

These pressures occurring whilst local authorities are facing significant 

budgetary pressures. As a bordering authority, MCC report that issues with 

recruitment, retention, and market sufficiency are impacted by their proximity to 

English counties. 

  

1.3 Recruitment and retention is an ongoing priority for the local authority and a 

competitive market nationally and regionally presents ongoing challenges with 

workforce resilience. MCC have an agency reduction plan in place and 

workforce stability has improved in 2024. Senior leaders, managers and 

politicians recognise the need to improve workforce resilience within children’s 

services. Staff are proactively appointed through secondment (grow your own) 

schemes and international recruitment. Additional resource has also been 

provided for posts which aim to support service development, improve 

oversight, and quality assurance.  

 

1.4 Concerns were identified in relation to the local authority’s compliance with 

statutory requirements for safeguarding children. Specifically in relation to the 

timeliness of child protection visits and child protection case conferences.  

 

Page 24



 

5 
 

1.5 The local authority historically had a high population of Children Looked After 

(CLA) and service plans have focussed on safely reducing the number of 

children Looked After by MCC. 

 

1.6 Improvements have been made through the development of pre-statutory and 

preventative services. For example, services are in place to support the 

rehabilitation of children following periods of being looked after; to provide 

medium-term holistic support to families who make sustainable change; and 

therapeutic responses to parents and carers supporting children with trauma. 

The SPACE wellbeing panel1 provides good information sharing and a clear 

pathway to preventative services. 

 

1.7 The local authority is working towards the ambitions of the Welsh Government 

‘eliminate’ agenda2. Leaders have overseen significant service change and 

developed a range of posts and teams to meet this aim. The Family Reconnect 

Team assess the needs of children against the court order and care plan which 

brought them into care, supporting rehabilitation home or step-down out of 

placement where appropriate. The Family Resolution Team offers holistic 

support for families within private and public law proceedings. The new 14+ 

Service has an improved focus on the pathway planning for CLA, including an 

exploration of revoking care orders when children can achieve permanence at 

home. This reduces the risk of children becoming looked after and supports 

opportunities for permanence within their family. 

 

1.8 Alongside these developments, the local authority has completed a restructure 

of services for children and families who need support and protection, and 

leaders plan to review the Early Help and Assessment Team (EHAT). The local 

authority is developing a new practice model (Keeping Children Safe), practice 

standards, and a quality assurance framework. Sustainable progress is needed 

to improve compliance with statutory requirements and create consistency in 

strengths-based approaches. The application of effective quality assurance 

processes will be essential in this regard.  

 

1.9 Nearly all staff report being well supported by their colleagues and managers to 

do their job. Most staff would recommend working for MCC. This is underpinned 

by a ‘one service and team’ ethos with practitioners, managers, and leaders 

being described as motivated, accessible, and supportive. Given the contextual 

challenges above, it is a credit to leaders that staff have been supported 

through these changes and report these strengths. 

 

 
1 S.P.A.C.E. Wellbeing Monmouthshire :: Healthier Together (cymru.nhs.uk) 
2 Removing profit from the care of looked after children: briefing January 2023 [HTML] | GOV.WALES 

Page 25

https://abbhealthiertogether.cymru.nhs.uk/resources/information-on-local-healthcare-services/spce-wellbeing-monmouthshire
https://www.gov.wales/removing-profit-care-looked-after-children-briefing-january-2023-html


 

6 
 

1.10 There is variation in the quality of services and social work practice afforded to 

children and families. Specific improvements are required with some child 

protection interventions, to bring practice in line with the Wales Safeguarding 

Procedures3 (WSP). The local authority should also ensure the consistent 

application of strengths-based practice and quality assurance.  

 

Key findings and evidence  

Key findings and examples of evidence are presented below in line with the four 

principles of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

2. People - voice and control 

Strengths 

2.1 People find it easy to contact social services and they are treated with dignity 

and respect. The majority of people feel listened to and receive useful 

Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA). Leaders understand the needs of 

people in their area and provide good strategic direction to meet these needs 

and service demands. 

 

2.2 The Children’s Commissioner for Wales describes the MCC Participation 

Strategy as positive practice and ‘an excellent example of how services are 

embedding the principle of participation into their ways of working’4. 

Preventative and statutory services are expected to have their own participation 

plan, with delivery of outcomes being monitored by senior management. Teams 

are developing systems for seeking feedback and coproducing services with 

people. In the best examples, this has resulted in improved resources for 

people accessing community centres and inclusion for diverse groups 

(registering care leavers to vote and providing culturally appropriate services for 

unaccompanied asylum-seeking children). 

 

2.3 There is emphasis on children being given the opportunity to have a voice and 

share their life experience. CLA described having social workers who listen and 

take their views on board. When they did not have a good relationship with their 

social worker, this was nearly always due to staff turnover and challenges with 

recruitment and retention.  

 

2.4 Family support and preventative services work closely with social workers, to 

ensure families benefit from outcome-focused interventions. The views of 

people are recorded throughout general case recordings. Some chronologies 

 
3 Safeguarding Wales 
4 A Children’s Rights Approach for Social Care in Wales - Children’s Commissioner for Wales (childcomwales.org.uk) 

Page 26

https://safeguarding.wales/en/
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.childcomwales.org.uk%2Fresources%2Fthe-right-way-a-childrens-rights-approach%2Fa-childrens-rights-approach-for-social-care-in-wales%2F&data=05%7C02%7CBen.Anderson001%40gov.wales%7Cfc38ee33955244b1ff0008dc3947ccb8%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638448227781556049%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=a7Y7wz61WHm3lRjQjElg%2Fc7HTJodJE40BV7GE5E2I7I%3D&reserved=0


 

7 
 

are used to support an understanding of past harm. Parents and carers told us 

about examples of child-focused relationships between practitioners and 

families.  

 

2.5 Most foster carers describe receiving good quality information when children 

are placed in their care and timely support at times of crisis. In addition, they 

receive a positive response to any concerns they escalate to their supervising 

social worker or the child’s Independent Reviewing Officer. 

 

2.6 The local authority gives regard to the rights of children to be offered 

independent professional advocacy. There are good links between the 

commissioned advocacy provider, leaders, and the Safeguarding and Quality 

Assurance Team (SQAT). There are examples of parents and children 

benefitting from formal advocacy, with routine age-appropriate referrals being 

made for children named on the child protection register (CPR). 

 

2.7 The Healing Hands project is supporting and upskilling staff with emotional well-

being and additional support needs. Managers provide reflective spaces to 

support workforce resilience and team morale. Senior leaders and managers 

remain appropriately focused on workforce recruitment and retention. A 

workforce plan is in place and there are recent indications this is helping to 

improve workforce stability.   

 

Areas for improvement  

 

2.8 There is limited evidence to confirm children have benefitted from direct work 

which informs ongoing assessment and care planning. Children’s direct 

contributions are important to support decision-making, particularly when this 

relates to whether they are at risk of experiencing harm. The local authority 

should ensure assessments and care plans consistently capture the voice 

of children. 

 

2.9 The voice of significant adults and their strengths are not sufficiently evidenced 

within child protection assessments and section 47 enquiries. It is important 

children’s services work towards consistent parental involvement throughout the 

safeguarding process, subject to this being in the best interests of the child. 

Informal advocacy would also be improved through specific focus on the role of 

extended family in promoting and creating safety for children. The voice and 

choice of parents and support networks should be strengthened within 

assessments and plans. 

 

2.10 Leaders are working with staff to develop and pilot new approaches to 

supervision. The frequency of supervision is inconsistent for some staff and the 

Page 27



 

8 
 

quality of supervision can vary. This could be further developed by consistently 

agreeing SMART5 actions and evidencing a reflective and strengths-based 

approach. Equally, some staff would benefit from an enhanced focus on staff 

well-being and professional development. Leaders should ensure consistent 

standards for supervision and well-being support.  

 

2.11 The support of agency workers is essential in addressing gaps in service areas. 

This is especially relevant in the commissioning of temporary child protection 

conference chairs. These posts provide continuity of support to families and 

challenge where appropriate to practitioners. The approach of agency and local 

authority conference chairs can vary. Leaders should work with all staff to 

create consistent approaches to practice.  

 

2.12 The local authority is predominantly English speaking and wants to achieve an 

8.986% increase in the number of Welsh speakers by 2027. MCC report 100% 

compliance with the active offer of Welsh. Only one member of staff in the Child 

and Family Service can speak Welsh. Leaders should continue to develop 

sufficiency to meet the linguistic needs of Welsh speaking people.  

 

3. Prevention  

 

Strengths 

  

3.1 A preventative approach underpins practice and IAA is understood at many 

levels of the organisation. The local authority adopts a place-based approach6 

and the InFACT (Integrated Families and Community Together Team) deliver 

an ‘advice line’ service for families, as the first point of contact for early 

intervention.  

 

3.2 EHAT have experienced a significant rise in the number of people seeking IAA. 

Despite this, practitioners make decisions for all contacts received within one 

working day and all assessments are within statutory timescales. The local 

authority report that all care and support plans are completed within ten working 

days of the (EHAT) single assessment concluding.  

 

3.3 There is a coherent approach to early help and prevention to support children 

and families. This enables families to receive support and provide their children 

with the safety, nurture and care they need. Services have developed that 

enhance the support available for children, young people, and their families.  

 
5 SMART - SMART is a best practice framework for setting goals. A SMART goal should be specific, measurable, achievable, realistic 
and time bound. 

 
6 Place-based approaches to community engagement and support | GOV.WALES 

Page 28

https://www.gov.wales/place-based-approaches-community-engagement-and-support


 

9 
 

 

3.4 The CAMHS transformation programme supported the development of a Single 

Point of Access for Children’s Emotional (SPACE) Wellbeing. The service 

operates in line with national objectives and the Single Front Door principle of 

the NEST Framework7. This positive practice supports children, young people, 

and families to access the right service at the right time.  

 

3.5 The range of preventative and therapeutic services available through SPACE 

Wellbeing is extensive. The availability of trauma/psychologically informed 

approaches and crisis interventions, being a specific strength. This includes 

school-based counselling, internal counsellors, play therapists, family therapy, 

well-being workers, and clinical psychology. More recently, the Family Time 

Service expanded its service offer, to include out of hours support for families in 

crisis. In some cases, this includes 24/7 support for families, and we heard 

good examples of this keeping children safe whilst decisions are made around 

safeguarding. Monmouthshire Young Carers also provided 1:1 and group 

support for 236 young carers and 130 family members. 

 

Areas for improvement 

 

3.6 A shared understanding about how to respond to presenting need and harm is 

not clear across partner agencies. There is currently no multi-agency document 

available to reinforce consistency. This can impact the timeliness and 

appropriateness of responses, as children’s services can be overwhelmed by a 

high volume of contacts. Leaders should continue to work with partners to 

develop a regional approach to threshold and need.  

 

3.7 The rise in demand within EHAT has impacted the resilience of the service. 

Staff are trained to use collaborative communication with people, which should 

support coproduction and proportionate decision making. However, service 

pressures cause inconsistent approaches to assessment and practice. The 

local authority should ensure the persistent demands of this work do not 

undermine the quality of practice provided to people. This is important as 

interventions within EHAT can set the tone for assessments and plans within 

Family Support and Protection Teams (FSPT). Equally, strengths-based 

practice and proportionate decision making within EHAT, will reduce demand 

and the need for re-assessment within FSPT.  

 

3.8 Strengths should be identified and acknowledged sooner within child protection 

processes. Leaders have re-shaped services and recently merged court and 

protection teams, to support preventative approaches at an earlier stage in the 

 
7 Nest Nyth - Gwentrpb  

Page 29

https://www.gwentrpb.wales/nest-nyth


 

10 
 

child’s journey through care and support. Leaders should continue to have 

oversight and monitor that strengths-based practice is used consistently 

across the service.  

 

4. Well-being  

 

Strengths 

 

4.1 Overall, safeguarding is understood at many levels of the organisation. The 

local authority has a local policy for Keeping Children Safe within the child 

protection process. This supports internal staff to have a clear understanding of 

local guidance and standards. It includes arrangements for managers and 

leaders to have line of sight on the lived experience of children.  

 

4.2 Practitioners are focused on developing supportive and trusting relationships 

with people. EHAT have timely what matters conversations to identify risks and 

actions. Most strategy discussions and section 47 enquiries take place in a 

timely way and involve the right agencies, who contribute well to decision 

making. 

 

4.3 Within the Public Law Outline (PLO), leaders provide constructive challenge to 

support consideration of all options. Social workers consistently create 

assessment plans which support analysis of the core risks relating to threshold, 

the impact on the child, and parental capacity to change. This positive practice 

supports robust analysis and proportionate decision making in the latter stages 

of a child’s journey through safeguarding processes.  

 

4.4 The local authority are developing placement opportunities for children who are 

Looked After at a local and regional level, to ensure they are living in safe and 

appropriate settings. This includes efforts to increase the numbers of in-house 

carers, and through the expansion of residential and supported accommodation 

options within the county. 

 

4.5 A rapid rehousing transition plan was approved by MCC Cabinet this year. This 

includes a detailed action plan setting out how the council will address the 

challenges it faces around homelessness and homeless accommodation. A 

young person’s homelessness panel has been established and will help focus 

resources where they can have the greatest impact.  

 

4.6 Nearly all local authorities in Wales have insufficient foster carers to meet 

demand. This creates an over-reliance on private providers. To encourage the 

recruitment and retention of foster carers, the local authority is working at a 

local and regional level to ensure their on-going offer, both financial and 

Page 30



 

11 
 

practical, is as good as it can be. The local authority is working with Foster 

Wales to run active campaigns and increase the numbers of in-house foster 

carers to provide placements. Two children’s homes have been commissioned 

last year through partnership models, one of which is a specialised provision for 

young people with complex needs. More opportunities to develop residential 

and supported accommodation placements are planned for the future.  

 

Areas for improvement 

 

4.7 Compliance with statutory visits to children on the CPR has ranged from 58.8% 

to 67.2% in the year to date. The local authority must adhere to statutory 

standards for visiting children named on the CPR. Leaders should work 

with operational staff to understand and resolve the contextual reason for 

any challenges with recording.  

 

4.8 The local authority takes a cautious approach to risk management and 

evidence of parental change, within child protection. Practice would be 

improved through the consistent application of strength-based and solution 

focussed approaches. Leaders should ensure practitioners consistently 

work with stakeholders and significant adults to share information about 

risk and promote proportionate decision making.  

 

4.9 Assessments outside of PLO do not consistently address the risks and 

outcomes needed to reduce harm and promote well-being. Practitioners can 

lose focus on the core issues for assessment. The quality of assessments 

would be improved by having increased focus on risks, strengths, impact, and 

outcomes. Leaders should have greater oversight of the quality of 

assessments, to ensure they are consistently focused on whether a child 

is suffering significant harm or is at risk of suffering significant harm.  

 

4.10 This equally applies to child protection conference chairs whose primary role is 

to ensure the conference is child-centred and the care and support protection 

needs of children are met. Outline plans are mostly comprised of a list of 

services. As the outline care and support protection plan is developed through 

core groups, the focus on risk and safety can further diminish, with records 

focusing broadly on service updates and parental compliance. Leaders should 

have greater oversight of the quality of plans, to ensure they are 

consistently focused on risks, strengths, the impact on children, and 

outcomes to be achieved.  

 

4.11 SQAT review the care and support plans for CLA, and the care and support 

protection plans for children on the CPR. This includes two members of staff 

and corporate support has been provided to commission cover for a vacant 

Page 31



 

12 
 

post. This resource currently reviews the plans of 201 CLA and 115 children on 

the CPR. The service has a very high workload and this impacts on the quality 

of work reviewing officers can do. The local authority do not currently have 

sufficient resilience within the SQAT. Leaders should continue to work 

towards improved sufficiency, to consistently meet agreed standards. 

Despite this, nearly all reviews for CLA are held within statutory timescales and 

foster carers describe the child’s view as being prominent within the review 

process. Leaders should continue to develop sufficiency, to move beyond 

compliance and work towards the ambitions of the IRO Practice 

Standards8.  

 

4.12 Paperwork is not routinely completed and shared with parents and stakeholders 

prior to conference. Significant family members are not always given an 

opportunity to attend meetings. Conference chairs do not always speak with 

parents prior to conference. Delays have occurred with child protection 

conference for a range of reasons, including delays with paperwork, difficulties 

with quoracy, and workforce challenges. Leaders must ensure practice 

improves and consistently meets the timescales and requirements of the 

Wales Safeguarding Procedures.  

 

4.13 Managers and leaders receive core data sets that are scrutinised within a data 

management clinic. Systems for data entry are not currently supporting this 

process in a sufficiently valid way. For example, many assessments and plans 

are completed on a Word document outside the social care record IT system, 

and this leaves inconsistency with approvals and oversight. There are system 

issues preventing visits being saved to the local authority database. In effect, 

this means managers cannot be confident whether visits, assessments, and 

plans are being completed in a timely manner. Leaders have advised that 

system developments have been delayed, pending decisions being made about 

the local authority joining the Welsh Community Care Information System. The 

local authority should continue to work towards interim arrangements 

which can assure leaders that statutory and local standards are being 

met.   

 

4.14 There are insufficient systems in place to provide quality assurance, and 

managers and SQAT staff do not have capacity to complete this activity in a 

consistent way. The local authority is developing a new practice model 

(Keeping Children Safe), practice standards, and a quality assurance 

framework. This improvement will be supported by the creation of three new 

posts which support service development and quality assurance (an additional 

service manager, implementation officer, and further conference chair). 

 
8 IRO-Exec-Summary_E.pdf (afkacymru.org.uk) 

Page 32

https://afkacymru.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/IRO-Exec-Summary_E.pdf


 

13 
 

Leaders should ensure these developments take place in a timely way, to 

drive consistency across teams and improve key practice areas.  

 

5. Partnership and Integration  

 

Strengths 

  

5.1 There are good examples of prevention services working in a constructive way 

with social workers, to support the well-being of families receiving care and 

support. This includes positive practice where social workers can access 

consultations with a range of professionals, who provide alternative 

perspectives and support to develop a more holistic view of the child’s needs. 

Information sharing with internal services would be improved further through the 

consistent recording of these consultations and reflective sessions.  

 

5.2 There are good examples of information sharing between agencies, when 

safeguarding children. This results in appropriate information exchanges within 

safeguarding enquiries and initial child protection conferences. It is 

exceptionally positive practice that initial strategy discussions and meetings 

are predominantly multi-agency, which enriches the information sharing 

process. Historical and relevant contextual information is generally made 

available at child protection conference. Schools know their pupils well, and it is 

positive to see the contribution of school staff at important safeguarding 

meetings. 

 

5.3 Overall, partnerships are progressing towards effective integration, meeting 

needs, and promoting well-being in line with legislation and expectations. 

Leaders work well with partners across Gwent to develop and innovate, to 

improve outcomes for children and young people with complex needs. This 

includes the SPACE Wellbeing Panel, and other notable regional initiatives 

outlined below.  

 

5.4 Action for Children Platfform Gwent4YP Support service provides individual and 

group peer support sessions, with 88% of young people self-reporting improved 

emotional well-being. The Skills for Living project delivered by Action for 

Children supports care experienced young people to overcome their 

experiences and make changes in their lives. The Regional Partnership Board 

have been working closely with clinical leads, partners and strategic groups to 

ensure full use of the Neurodevelopmental Improvement Fund. This has been 

utilised to increase support sessions, assessment capacity, post diagnostic 

support, and the production of digital materials for individuals and their families. 

 

Page 33



 

14 
 

5.5 Providers and third sector agencies report effective information sharing 

between child and family and their agencies. One agency described this 

positive practice to state that ‘Monmouthshire have proven themselves to be 

considered, reflective and analytical in ensuring that our partnership support 

services are what is needed in this area. This partnership approach has allowed 

for a sustained, impactful and much valued service that has been able to evolve 

according to need and help many children and young people to get much 

needed permanency in their lives’. 

 

5.6 MACE (Multi-agency Child Exploitation) panel is well regarded by partners and 

is an effective platform for information sharing about risks in respect of non-

familial harm. 

 

Areas for improvement 

 

5.7 Inappropriate referrals can be made to children’s services by partners. This 

increases demand and impacts the capacity of the service to respond. Leaders 

should work with partners to address this issue and maintain a timely 

safeguarding response. Children’s services should consistently report the 

outcome of referrals to the person who made the initial report.  

 

5.8 Safeguarding plans are not being used to drive outcomes for people. Leaders 

should improve systems for updating and distributing the safeguarding 

plan to partner agencies. This will support partners to consistently work 

towards agreed outcomes.  

 

5.9 Communication and shared multi-agency cooperation requires improvement in 

some key areas. For example, there are challenges arranging child protection 

medicals and outcome strategy meetings are not generally attended by Police. 

Children’s services have introduced a pre-conference panel that convenes 

following a section 47 enquiry. The All Wales Safeguarding procedures do not 

support this single agency arrangement being used in lieu of a multi-agency 

outcome strategy meeting. Whilst the panel provides additional opportunity for 

senior managers to support rationale and decision making, there is indication 

the panel can introduce some delays between the conclusion of a section 47 

enquiry and initial child protection conference. Leaders should work with the 

Regional Safeguarding Board to specify accepted practice, as outlined in 

the Wales Safeguarding Procedures. Senior managers across agencies 

should also ensure there is regular and consistent dialogue to address 

local (strategic and operational) safeguarding challenges.  

 

 

Page 34



 

15 
 

6. Next Steps  

CIW expects the local authority to consider the areas identified for improvement and  

take appropriate action to address and improve these areas. CIW will monitor  

progress through its ongoing performance review activity with the local authority.  

Where relevant we expect the local authority to share the positive practice identified  

with other local authorities, to disseminate learning and help drive continuous  

improvement in statutory services throughout Wales. 

 

7. Methodology  

 

7.1 Most inspection evidence was gathered by reviewing the experiences of people 

through review and tracking of their social care record. We reviewed 34 social care 

records and tracked 6 of these to understand the person’s experience in more depth. 

 

7.2 Tracking a person’s social care record includes having conversations with the person  

in receipt of social care services, their family or carers, key worker, the key worker’s  

manager, and other professionals involved. 

 

7.3 To ensure the voice of people is central to our work, CIW completed engagement with 

6 CLA and 8 foster carers during the notification period. CIW also interviewed local 

authority employees and partner organisations from statutory and third sector 

agencies. All of the above resulted in CIW engaging with 81 individuals.  

 

7.4 In addition, we reviewed supporting documentation sent to CIW for the purpose of the 

inspection, including compliments/complaints and staff supervision records.  

 

Our Privacy Notice can be found at https://www.careinspectorate.wales/how-we-use-

your-information 

 

8. Welsh Language  

 

 CIW is committed to providing an active offer of the Welsh language during its 

activity with local authorities. The active offer was not required on this occasion. 

This is because the people taking part did not wish to contribute to this inspection 

in Welsh.  

 

9. Acknowledgements 

 

 CIW would like to thank staff, partners and people who gave their time and  

 contributed to this inspection 

 

 

Page 35

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/how-we-use-your-information
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/how-we-use-your-information


 

16 
 

10. Glossary  

 

Must - Improvement is deemed necessary in order for the local authority to meet a duty 

outlined in legislation, regulation or code of practice. The local authority is not currently 

meeting its statutory duty/duties and must take action.  

 

Should - Improvement will enhance service provision and/or outcomes for people and/or 

their carer. It does not constitute a failure to meet a legal duty at this time; but without 

suitable action, there is a risk the local authority may fail to meet its legal duty/duties in 

future.  

 

Positive practice - Identified areas of strength within the local authority. This relates to 

practice considered innovative and/or which consistently results in positive outcomes for 

people receiving statutory services.  

 

Prevention and Early Intervention - A principle of the Act which aims to ensure that there 

is access to support to prevent situations from getting worse, and to enhance the 

maintenance of individual and collective well-being. This principle centres on increasing 

preventative services within communities to minimise the escalation of critical need.  

 

Voice and Control - A principle of the Act which aims to put the individual and their needs 

at the centre of their care and support, and giving them a voice in, and control over, the 

outcomes that can help them achieve well-being and the things that matter most to them. 

 

Well-being - A principle of the Act which aims for people to have well-being in every part of 

their lives. Well-being is more than being healthy. It is about being safe and happy, having 

choice and getting the right support, being part of a strong community, having friends and 

relationships that are good for you, and having hobbies, work or learning. It is about 

supporting people to achieve their own well-being and measuring the success of care and 

support.  

 

Co-Production - A principle of the Act which aims for people to be more involved in the 

design and provision of their care and support. It means organisations and professionals 

working with them and their family, friends and carers so their care and support is the best 

it can be.  

 

Multi-Agency working - A principle of the Act which aims to strengthen joint working 

between care and support organisations to make sure the right types of support and 

services are available in local communities to meet people’s needs. The summation of the 

Act states that there is a requirement for co-operation and partnership by public authorities.  

 

SMART - SMART is a best practice framework for setting goals. A SMART goal should be 

specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time bound.  

Page 36



 

17 
 

 

What matters - ‘What Matters’ conversations are a way for professionals to understand 

people’s situation, their current well-being, and what can be done to support them. It is an 

equal conversation and is important to help ensure the voice of the individual or carer is 

heard and ‘what matters’ to them. 

 

Eliminate agenda - As part of the Co-operation Agreement between the Welsh 

Government and Plaid Cymru, there is a clear commitment to ‘eliminate private profit from 

the care of children looked after’. 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

People Scrutiny Committee                                                                                              (Meetings at 10am unless stated otherwise) 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

17th July 2pm 2024  Elect the Chair and 

Vice Chair 

   

Rapid Rehousing 

Update Report 

To scrutinise ongoing progress on rapid 

rehousing programme.  

Rebecca 

Cresswell 

Ian Bakewell 

Policy Review 

Care Leaver - 

protected 

characteristics 

To scrutinise a proposal that care 

experience is treated as if it were a 

protected characteristic. 

Jane Rodgers 

Councillor 

Chandler  

Policy Development 

Invite Performance 

& Overview 

Scrutiny Members 

23rd July 2024 

 

 

Care Inspectorate 

Wales Inspection  

To review the recent inspection report. Jane Rodgers 

Councillor 

Chandler 

Ben Anderson 

Review – external 

inspection 

Home to School 

Transport Policy 

To conduct pre-decision scrutiny on the 

proposals under consultation. 

Deb Hill-Howells Pre-decision Scrutiny 

24th September 

2024 

*Additional item if 

required* 

   

Planning and 

Provision of School 

Places  

To scrutinise data and projections for 

pupil places and the impact of future 

housing development.  

Will Mclean 

Matthew Jones 

Policy Development 

Special meeting 

P&O 

 

Development of 

children’s placements 

policy 

   

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

People Scrutiny Committee                                                                                              (Meetings at 10am unless stated otherwise) 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

8th October ~ 

invite to P&O 

Scrutiny 

Chief Officer for 

Social Care Annual 

Monitoring Report 

   

Safeguarding Annual 

Report 

   

12th November 

2024 
Blue Badge 

Scheme(Possibility to 

combine Disability 

Confident Pledge?) 

To discuss the criteria differences 

between Monmouthshire and other areas 

and invite the Cabinet Member for 

Equalities, Age Cymru and Macmillan to a 

meeting for a discussion.  

Councillor 

Sandles 

Policy Review 

21st January 2025     

18th February 2025     

1st April 2025     

To be confirmed Young Carers 

Strategy and the 

Carers Strategy 

Pre-decision Scrutiny of the strategies. Kim Dolphin 

Councillor 

Chandler 

Pre-decision Scrutiny 

     

P
age 40



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

People Scrutiny Committee                                                                                              (Meetings at 10am unless stated otherwise) 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

     

 

Corporate and Community Plan Items for the Committee’s consideration for inclusion into the People Scrutiny Forward Plan: 

Disability 

Confident Pledge 

    

Participatory 

Budgeting 

Programme 

    

Race equality 

action plan for 

Wales  

    

LGBTQ+ action 

plan  

    

Disability Action 

Plan  

    

Gender Equality 

Action Plan  

    

Homes for Social 

Rent and work to 

bring empty 

properties back 

into use 

    

P
age 41



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

People Scrutiny Committee                                                                                              (Meetings at 10am unless stated otherwise) 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

Review and update 

shared housing 

allocations policy 

    

Rapid Rehousing 

approach/rapid 

rehousing action 

plan delivery 

    

Care without profit 

– increase in-

county placement 

options 

    

Support effective 

discharge from 

hospital – 

integration 

between health 

and social care 

    

Provide a high-

quality residential 

care facility for 

people with 

dementia  

    

P
age 42



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

People Scrutiny Committee                                                                                              (Meetings at 10am unless stated otherwise) 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

Young Carers 

Strategy and 

Carers Strategy 

    

Chief Officer for 

Social Care and 

Health Annual 

Report 

    

Safeguarding 

Performance 

Report 

    

Inclusion Strategy     

Develop a broader 

14-19 education 

offer through 

collaboration with 

partners 

    

 

 

 

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee / 

Decision Maker

Meeting date / Decision 

due
Report Title de Purpose Author

Date item added to the 

planner

Cabinet Jan-25

2025/26 Draft Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Council 01-Jul-25

RLDP for Adoption Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To adopt the RLDP following receipt of the 

Inspector's report, making it the County's 

Development Plan as defined by S38(6) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
23-Aug-22

ICMD 09-Apr-25

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 4 Ben Callard - Resources

Council 06-Mar-25

2025/26 Final Budget sign off including CT resolution Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

Council 06-Mar-25

2025/26 Capital Strategy & Treasury Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

Cabinet 05-Mar-25

2025/26 Final Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 05-Mar-25

2024/25 Revenue and Capital Monitoring Month 9 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 05-Mar-25

2025/26 WCF/Mon Farm Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

ICMD 29-Jan-25

2025/26 Community Council and Police Precepts 

final

Ben Callard - Resources

Council 23-Jan-25

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2025/26 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



ICMD 15-Jan-25

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 3 Ben Callard - Resources

Dave Jarrett 13-Jun-24

Cabinet Jan-TBC

2025/26 Draft Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 10-Jul-24

ICMD 18-Dec-24

2025/26 Community Council and Police Precepts 

draft

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

ICMD 18-Dec-24

Council Tax Base 2025/26 Ben Callard - Resources

Ruth Donovan

Cabinet 04-Dec-24

2024/25 Revenue and Capital Monitoring Month 6 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 06-Nov-24

Local Flood Risk Management Strateg

Mark Hand 19-Feb-24

Cabinet 06-Nov-24

 

 

Hannah Jones 4-Sep-23

Cabinet 06-Nov-24

Monmouthshire NEET Prevention Strategy

Louise Wilce 10-Jun-24

Cabinet 06-Nov-24

Shire Hall Museum, Monmouth 

To update Cabinet on progress of the National Lottery 

Heritage Fund development phase and consider 

options for the stage 2 delivery bid 

Tracey Thomas 23-May-24

Council 24-Oct-24

Safeguarding report – Social Care & Health

Jane Rodgers 4-Jun-24

P
age 46



Council 24-Oct-24

Statement of Gambling Policy and proposals for 

casinos

Linda O Gorman 9-Jul-24

Council 24-Oct-24

Chief Officer report – Social Care & Health

Jane Rodgers 4-Jun-24

ICMD 23-Oct-24

Welsh Church FundWorking Group - meeting 2 Ben Callard - Resources

Dave Jarrett 13-Jun-24

Cabinet 02-Oct-24

Adoption of Abergavenny Placemaking Plan Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

'To adopt the Abergavenny Placemaking Plan, co-

produced with Abergavenny Town Council, to 

inform future regeneration priorities and grant bids
Mark Hand / Dan 

Fordham
3-Oct-22

Cabinet 02-Oct-24

Adoption of Magor Placemaking Plan Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy
Mark Hand / Dan 

Fordham
3-Oct-22

Cabinet 02-Oct-24

Adoption of Monmouth Placemaking Plan Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To adopt the Monmouth Placemaking Plan, co-

produced with Monmouth Town Council, to inform 

future regeneration priorities and grant bids
Mark Hand / Dan 

Fordham
3-Oct-22

Cabinet 02-Oct-24

Road Safety Strategy Catrin Maby To adopt the Road Safety Strategy

Mark Hand / Paul 

Keeble
4-Oct-22

Cabinet 25-Sep-24

Commercial Investment Update report Ben Callard - Resources

Nick Keyse 10-Jul-24

Cabinet 25-Sep-24

2025/26 Revenue and Capital MTFP update and 

process

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 25-Sep-24

2024/25 Revenue Monitoring Month 4 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Daviea 4-Jun-24

P
age 47



Council 19-Sep-24

Home to School Transport – response to 

consultation 

Deb Hill Howells 4-Jun-24

Council 19-Sep-24

Self-assessment report – People, Performance and 

Partnerships 

Matt Gatehouse 4-Jun-24

Council 19-Sep-24

RLDP submission for examination Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To endorse the submission of the Deposit RLDP 

to the Welsh Government for examination by an 

independent Inspector.  By agreeing, Council will 

be saying it wants this document to be the 

adopted RLDP for Monmouthshire.

Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
23-Aug-22

Council 19-Sep-24

Gov & Audit Annual Report 

Andrew Blackmore 21-Jun-24

Cabinet 11-Sep-24

Home to School Transport – response to 

consultation 

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

4-Jun-24

Cabinet 11-Sep-24

Pavement Café Policy Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To adopt the pavement café policy as the basis 

for making decisions on applications for licences
Mark Hand / Paul 

Keeble
4-Oct-22

Cabinet 11-Sep-24

Measurement Framework Mary Ann Brocklesby - Whole 

Authority Strategy

To approve an update to the measurement 

framework that enables Cabinet to track progress 

against the priorities in the community and 

corporate plan
Matt Gatehouse 7-Jun-24

Cabinet 11-Sep-24

UK Shared Prosperity Fund post March 2025 – 

financial implications and impact

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

Hannah Jones 10-Jul-24

Cabinet 11-Sep-24

GRT sites Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

4-Jun-24

ICMD 21-Aug-24

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 1 Ben Callard - Resources

Dave Jarrett 6-Jun-24

P
age 48



Council 18-Jul-24

Older People’s Champion Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

To formally appoint to the role of Age Friendly 

champion in line with the commitment made 

by Council in January of this year and to 

provide a brief update on work done towards 

making Monmouthshire an age friendly county

Matthew Gatehouse / 

Jane Rodgers
27-Jun-24

Council 18-Jul-24

Chief Officer report – Children and Young People

Will McLean 4-Jun-24

Council 18-Jul-24

Medium Term Financial Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 17-Jul-24

Budden Crescent business case Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Jane Rodgers 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 17-Jul-24

Feedback from P&O Scrutiny

26-Jun-24

Cabinet 17-Jul-24

Connected Care report – Social Care and Health 

(possible Sept)

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Jane Rodgers 4-Jul-24

Cabinet 17-Jul-24

Digital and Data Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

10-Jun-24

Cabinet 17-Jul-24

Revenue and Capital monitoring outturn report 

(including early update on 2024/25)

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 10-May-24

ICMD 10-Jul-24

SPEED LIMIT PROPOSALS – AMENDMENT ORDER NO. 

14
Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

This report seeks Cabinet Member approval 

to proceed with several Traffic Orders 

throughout the County.

Graham Kinsella

Cabinet 05-Jun-24

Whole Authority Strategic Risk Assessment To provide cabinet with an overview of the current 

strategic risks facing the authority and to agree 

the revised strategic risk management policy Richard Jones 26-Apr-24

P
age 49



Cabinet 05-Jun-24

People Strategy Ben Callard - Resources To seek Cabinet approval of a revised people 

strategy, which is one of a suite of enabling 

strategies that sit underneath the community and 

corporate plan to ensure the authorities resources 

are aligned with the delivery of its purpose.

Matt Gatehouse 1-May-24

Cabinet 05-Jun-24

Consultation on the relocation of Ysgol Gymraeg Y 

Fenni

Martyn Groucutt - Education

To receive feedback on the statutory consultation 

concerning the proposed relocation and increase in 

capacity of Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni.

Matthew Jones 26-Feb-24

Cabinet 22-May-24

Feedback from P&O Scrutiny Performance and Overview Scrutiny Committee ~ 

Feedback to Cabinet of Meeting held on 14th May 

2024 Hazel Ilett 14-May-24

Cabinet 22-May-24

Strategy for Commissioned Domiciliary Care in 

Monmouthshire

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Ceri York 24-Apr-24

ICMD 22-May-24

Council Tax Assistance for MCC Foster Carers Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding The purpose of this paper is to present the 

case for providing Monmouthshire County 

Council foster carers with a subsidy on their 

council tax.

Jane Rodgers 8-May-24

ICMD 22-May-24

Florence Jones Report & FGE Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy to consider the options in relation to the 

collection of monies secured under a  land 

charge on land at and  including Upper House 

Farm, Wonastow, Monmouth

Amy Longford 30-Apr-24

Council 16-May-24

Political Balance Report Angela Sandles - Engagement 

James Williams

Council 16-May-24

Appointments to Committees Angela Sandles - Engagement 

James Williams

Council 16-May-24

Outside Bodies Angela Sandles - Engagement 

James Williams

Cabinet 15-May-24

Uploading S106 Capital Sums into 2024/25 Capital 

Budget

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Mike Moran 9-Apr-24

P
age 50



Cabinet 15-May-24

Development of a Supported Accommodation 

Project for care experienced young people

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Jane Rodgers 24-Apr-24

Cabinet 15-May-24

Repurposing of Severn View Residential Home, 

Chepstow

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To seek approval for the repurposing of Severn 

View Residential Home to support policy 

objectives around temporary accommodation, in 

accordance with the Rapit Rehousing Strategy.

Nick Keyse/Cath 

Fallon

Cabinet 15-May-24

Local Housing Market Assessment Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

The LHMA provides a review of the need for 

affordable and market housing across Monmouthshire 

and an overview of the current housing market. Sally Meyrick 8-Jan-24

Cabinet 15-May-24

Local Flood Strategy Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

Carl Touhig 9-Oct-23

Cabinet 15-May-24

Local Transport Plan Catrin Maby To adopt the Local Transport Plan

Debra Hill-Howells / 

Christian Schmidt
4-Oct-22

Cabinet 15-May-24

Climate and Nature Emergency

To receive an update on progress made towards 

the Climate and Nature Emergency Strategy and 

to agree the new overarching Climate and Nature 

Emergency Strategy and action plan format

Hazel Clatworthy 19-Oct-23

 Cabinet 15-May-24

Greenfingers Report Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Jane Rodgers 26-Mar-24

Cabinet 15-May-24

Local Housing Market Assessment Refresh 2022-

2037

To provide an overview of the Local Housing 

Market Assessment Refresh 2022-2037 which 

provides an estimation of the additional affordable 

housing need across Monmouthshire. 
Sally Meyrick 15-Apr-24

Cabinet 15-May-24

Local Food Strategy

Marianne Elliot 18-Apr-24

Council 18-Apr-24

Placement Development Strategy Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

To set out a strategy for the expansion and 

development of in-county residential and 

supported accommodation placements for 

children who are looked after. To make 

recommendations about i) changing the use of 3 

existing properties in order to support the strategy 

Jane Rodgers / Diane 

Corrister

8-Jan-24

P
age 51



ICMD 17-Apr-24

ICMD Report - 20 moh Speed Limit Revocation 

Order

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Graham Kinsella

22-Mar-24

ICMD 17-Apr-24

 ICM report - Florence Jones  DEFERRED Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

Amy Longford

11-Mar-24

Cabinet 10-Apr-24

Public Spaces Protection Order Dog Controls Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

Huw Owen 19-Feb-24

Cabinet 10-Apr-24

Primary School catchment areas consultation 

feedback 

Martyn Groucutt - Education

For Members to receive feedback on the consultation 

relating to a review of Primary School catchments 

areas and determine whether to implement proposals

Matthew Jones 20-Nov-23

Cabinet 10-Apr-24

Sustainable Communities for Learning Strategic 

Outline Programme update

Martyn Groucutt - Education To provide members with details of the revisions 

to the Strategic Outline Programme for the 

Sustainable Communities for Learning 

Programme which will inform the development of 

projects within the rolling programme of 

investment. 

Debbie Graves 12-Sep-23

ICMD 27-Mar-24

Welsh Church Fund Working Group Ben Callard - Resources

Dave Jarrett

ICMD 27-Mar-24

Experimental TRO Prohibition of driving except for 

access Goldwire Lane Monmouth

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Graham Kinsella

ICMD 13-Mar-24

Increase in building control charges Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

Craig O'Connor

Cabinet 06-Mar-24

To consider a Business Case for the acquisition of a 

property for use as a registered children’s home

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

jane Rodgers 13-Feb-24

Council 29-Feb-24

Agree the name of the new Welsh-medium Primary 

School in Monmouth

Martyn Groucutt - Education Agree the name of the new Welsh-medium 

Primary School in Monmouth

Debbie Graves 15-Nov-23

P
age 52



Council 29-Feb-24

Standards Committee Appointment

James Williams 6-Feb-24

Council 29-Feb-24

Strategic Equality Plan 2024 To seek approval of a new Strategic Equality Plan 

for the period 2024-28, incorporating MCCs 

contribution to national action plans on race 

equality, LGBTQ and other protected 

characteristics

Matthew Gatehouse 15-Nov-23

Council 29-Feb-24

Appointment of Monmouthshire Local Access Forum To secure the appointment of members to the 

Monmouthshire Local Access Forum for its next 3 

year period. Matthew Lewis 18-Jan-23

Council 29-Feb-24

Final Budget Proposals Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies

Council 29-Feb-24

Capital and Treasury Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies

Council 29-Feb-24

Council Diary Angela Sandles - Engagement 

John Pearson

ICMD 28-Feb-24

WCF/Trust Treasury Fund Investment Ben Callard - Resources

Cabinet 28-Feb-24

2023/24 Revenue and Capital Monitoring - Month 9 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 27-Apr-23

Cabinet 28-Feb-24

2023/24 Final Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies

Cabinet 07-Feb-24

Economic Development Strategy REFRESHING THE MONMOUTHSHIRE 

BUSINESS GROWTH & ENTERPRISE 

STRATEGY and action plan in setting the 

economic ambition for the county and providing a 

strategic framework that guides future economic 

development interventions.

Hannah Jones 9-Jan-23

P
age 53



ICMD 24-Jan-24

Amendment to Street Naming and Numbering Policy 

regarding Replacement or additional Street 

nameplate signs for Existing Streets

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Mark Hand 2-Jan-24

ICMD 24-Jan-24

Community Council & Police Precepts -  Determination of payment Scheme                                                     Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies

Council 18-Jan-24

Introduction of Council Tax Premiums for Second 

homes from 1
st
 April 2024

Ben Callard - Resources Council to re affirm their decision on the Second 

Home Premium

Ruth Donovan 5-Dec-23

Council 18-Jan-24

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Ben Callard - Resources

Ruth Donovan

Council 18-Jan-24

Asset Management Strategy

Nick Keyse 28-Sep-23

Cabinet 17-Jan-24

Community & Corporate Plan performance update Mary Ann Brocklesby - Whole 

Authority Strategy

To provide cabinet with the latest performance 

report of commitments in the Community and 

Corporate Plan Richard Jones 5-Sep-23

Cabinet 17-Jan-24

REPURPOSING OF ACCOMMODATION IN THE 

COUNTY FARMS PORTFOLIO TO SUPPORT 

HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER POLICY 

OBJECTIVES

To seek approval for the repurposing of vacant cottages 

held within the County Farms Portfolio to support policy 

objectives such as alleviating pressures with 

homelessness and to address the reliance on unsuitable 

temporary accommodation.   

Nick Keyse 4-Dec-23

Cabinet 17-Jan-24

consultation on the relocation of Ysgol Gymraeg Y 

Fenni

Martyn Groucutt - Education

Matthew Jones 23-Aug-23

Cabinet 17-Jan-24

Approval of the revised MCC Counter Fraud, 

Corruption & Bribery Policy

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Jan Furtek 2-Nov-23

Cabinet 17-Jan-24

Draft Budget Proposals Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 29-Sep-23

P
age 54



ICMD 03-Jan-24

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 3 held 

on 7th December 2023 Meeting didn't happen

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Dave Jarrett 30-Mar-23

ICMD 20-Dec-23

Community Council & Police Precepts - Proposed 

payment schedule

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies

ICMD 20-Dec-23

Additional resources for the Revenues and Benefits 

Shared Service’

Ben Callard - Resources

Ruth Donovan

ICMD 20-Dec-23

Council Tax Base Report Ben Callard - Resources

Ruth Donovan

ICMD 20-Dec-23

LDP Annual Monitoring Report Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

'To endorse the LDP Annual Monitoring Report for 

submission to WG
Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
16-Jan-23

Cabinet 13-Dec-23

King Henry VIII 3 – 19 School Funding Formula Martyn Groucutt - Education To update Cabinet with the consultation feedback 

regarding the proposed fair funding formula for 

King Henry 3 – 19 School in Abergavenny. Nikki Wellington 23-Nov-23

Cabinet 13-Dec-23

Children’s Services: Foster Carer Recruitment and 

Retention – Foster Friendly Policy

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding The purpose of the report is to outline a proposal to 

create a policy that supports MCC employees who are 

existing foster carers or wish to become foster carers 

through offering an appropriate leave entitlement.

Dr Charlotte Drury

9-Nov-23

Cabinet 13-Dec-23

Primary catchment review

Matthew Jones 23-Jun-23

Cabinet 13-Dec-23

Whole Authority Strategic Risk Assessment Mary Ann Brocklesby - Whole 

Authority Strategy

To provide Cabinet with an overview of the 

current strategic risks facing the authority and to 

seek approval of the strategic risk assessment Richard Jones 5-Sep-23

Cabinet 13-Dec-23

2023/24 Revenue and Capital Monitoring - Month 6 Rachel Garrick - Resources

Jon Davies 27-Apr-23

P
age 55



Council 07-Dec-23

Relocation of PRS in South Monmouthshire Martyn Groucutt - Education Relocation of South Monmouthshire PRS Morwenna Wagstaff

13-Nov-23

Council 07-Dec-23

DIRECTOR’S ANNUAL REPORT to provide Council with an overview of SOCIAL 

CARE AND HEALTH directorate with a focus on 

year 2022 – 2023. Jane Rodgers 31-Jul-23

Council 07-Dec-23

SAFEGUARDING ANNUAL EVALUTION REPORT To provide Council with the annual self-evaluation 

of safeguarding from a whole authority 

perspective.
Jane Rodgers / Diane 

Corrister 
31-Jul-23

ICMD 29-Nov-23

Whole Authority Safeguarding Policy Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Naomi Lovesay 3-Nov-23

ICMD 29-Nov-23

Museums - Accredited

Rachael Rogers 12-Oct-23

ICMD 29-Nov-23

A013 Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Speed limit changes at Caerwent Brook/Dewstow Road 40mph between 20s, A466 30mph extension past the Monmouth show ground gate B, 30mph extension outside St Teilos Church, Abergavenny, 40mph speed limit Leechpool Lane and Leechpool Holdings, A4077 Crickhowell Road 40mph.

Mark Hand 18-Sep-23

ICMD 29-Nov-23

A012 Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Double yellows at Main Road, Portskewett, leading to Sugarloaf Llanwenarth car park, and Wonastow Road & Drybridge St alongside reallocation of Residents permit parking/removal of limited waiting bays on Drybridge St; prohibition of driving on Cwm Fagor Rd and Silurian Road, Undy.

Mark Hand 18-Sep-23

ICMD 15-Nov-23

'Planning Annual Performance Report Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To endorse the Planning Department Annual 

Performance Report for submission to WG
Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
16-Jan-23

ICMD 15-Nov-23

A012 Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order  

MOVED TO 29TH NOV

Double yellows at Main Road, Portskewett, leading to Sugarloaf Llanwenarth car park, and Wonastow Road & Drybridge St alongside reallocation of Residents permit parking/removal of limited waiting bays on Drybridge St; prohibition of driving on Cwm Fagor Rd and Silurian Road, Undy.

Mark Hand 18-Sep-23

ICMD 15-Nov-23

A013 Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 

MOVED TO 29TH NOV

Speed limit changes at Caerwent Brook/Dewstow Road 40mph between 20s, A466 30mph extension past the Monmouth show ground gate B, 30mph extension outside St Teilos Church, Abergavenny, 40mph speed limit Leechpool Lane and Leechpool Holdings, A4077 Crickhowell Road 40mph.

Mark Hand 18-Sep-23

P
age 56



Cabinet 15-Nov-23

DEVELOPING THE FUTURE MY DAY MY LIFE BASES Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding This report presents the findings of the final options 

appraisal for the proposed future My Day, My Life 

bases in Abergavenny, and to seek approval of the 

recommended base.  

Jane Rodgers 7-Nov-23

Cabinet 15-Nov-23

Budget Process and timetable Rachel Garrick - Resources

Jon Davies

Cabinet 08-Nov-23

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales Annual letter 

2022-23 to Monmouthshire County Council

The purpose is to fulfil the expectation of the 

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales that their 

report is brought to the attention of Cabinet.
Annette 

Evans/Matthew 

Gatehouse 

17-Oct-23

Cabinet 08-Nov-23

RIPA Review To review RIPA strategy and arrangements

Geraint Edwards 25-Sep-23

Cabinet 08-Nov-23

2023/24 Revenue and Capital Monitoring - Month 5 Rachel Garrick - Resources

Jon Davies

Council 26-Oct-23

Monmouthshire County Council Self- assessment 

2022/23

to seek Council approval of the Self-Assessment 

report 2022/23 in line with requirements outlined 

in the Local Government and Elections (Wales) 

Act 2021 and to ensure that members have a 

clear and transparent assessment of the Council’s 

performance.

Richard Jones 4-Jul-23

Council 26-Oct-23

RPB Area Plan 

Jane Rodgers 4-Jul-23

Council 26-Oct-23

RLDP Preferred Strategy consultation report Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To endorse the RLDP Preferred Strategy 

including any proposed changes arising from the 

public consultation.
Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
3-Oct-22

ICMD 25-Oct-23

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 2 held 

on 21st September 2023

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Dave Jarrett 30-Mar-23

Cabinet 11-Oct-23

Disposal of Land at Natgavenny Lane Rachel Garrick - Resources To seek Cabinet approval for the disposal of a 

parcel of land adjacent to the Nantgavenny Lane 

Busines Park, Mardy, Abergavenny Nick Keyse

P
age 57



Cabinet 11-Oct-23

Developing a base for My Day My Life in Monmouth 

and Abergavenny

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding

Further to the recommendations from the Practice 

Solutions review, the report sets out the criteria and 

decision making in respect of which bases to develop 

for the My Day My Life in both Monmouth and 

Abergavenny, and makes a recommendation on the 

Ceri York 25-Sep-23

ICMD 11-Oct-23

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING – 

TCBC AND MCC HERITAGE SERVICES IN 

RELATION TO MAMHILAD NYLON SPINNERS 

LISTED BUILDING.

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy The purpose of this report is to propose that MCC join 

into an MoU in relation to the provision of Heritage 

Advice to consider the ongoing management of the 

Nylon Spinners listed building at Mamhilad.

Amy Longford 22-Sep-23

Cabinet 04-Oct-23

Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Consultation

Cath Fallon 4-Sep-23

ICMD 27-Sep-23

Extending Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPOs) 

to tackle Anti Social Behaviour (ASB)
To seek approval to extend three Public 

Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO) in respect 

of Bailey Park, Abergavenny; Lower 

Abergavenny (including Castle Meadows) and 

Monmouth Town (including Chippenham 

Andrew Mason 31-Aug-23

Council 21-Sep-23

REPORT ON JOINT SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS 

FOR CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEES

Hazel Ilett 4-Sep-23

Council 21-Sep-23
Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report 

2022/23

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To inform Council of the work and conclusions of 

the Governance and Audit Committee from 1st 

April 2022 to 31st March 2023

Chair of Governance and 

Audit Committee, 

Andrew Blackmore

27th July 2023

Council 21-Sep-23

Standards Committee Annual Report This report is the first annual report from the 

Standards Committee to Council as required by 

the change in law set out in the Local Government 

and Elections Act 2021. It has to report on the 

discharge of the Committee’s functions for the 

financial year 1 Apr 22-31 Mar 23

Matt Phillips 10-Oct-22

ICMD 13-Sep-23

Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 12 

MOVED TO 25TH OCTOBER 2023

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

'Agreement to make the traffic order - 

parking/waiting restrictions at Justins Hill and 

Wyesham Avenue, Wyesham; Main Road and 

Castle Way, Portskewett; lane leading to 

Sugarloaf Llanwenarth car park; and Wonastow 

Rd/Drybridge Street Monmouth including removal 

Mark Hand

ICMD 13-Sep-23

Proposed Changes to the Membership of the School 

Budget Funding Forum

Martyn Groucutt - Education

Nikki Wellington

ICMD 13-Sep-23

'Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 12  

deferred to September 13th

Agreement to make the traffic order - 

parking/waiting restrictions at Justins Hill and 

Wyesham Avenue, Wyesham; Main Road and 

Castle Way, Portskewett; lane leading to 

Sugarloaf Llanwenarth car park; and Wonastow 

Rd/Drybridge Street Monmouth including removal 

Mark Hand 24-May-23

P
age 58



Cabinet 06-Sep-23

Respite review for people with learning disabilities 

Jane Rodgers 31-Jul-23

Cabinet 06-Sep-23

Home to School Transport Policy 2024/25 To consider the adoption of the proposed Home to 

School Transport Policy for the academic year 2024/25
Deh Hill Howells

Cabinet 06-Sep-23

Proposal to establish a Welsh medium seedling 

school in Monmouth

Cabinet to consider objection report and make 

final determination on how to proceed.

Debbie Graves 27-Mar-23

ICMD 16-Aug-23

Castle Wood Usk Low Cost Home Ownership Future 

Use

Sara Burch - Inclusive and Active 

Communities

ICMD 16-Aug-23

electric vehicle charging rate for public and staff at EVCI installed by MCCCatrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Deb Hill Howells 20-Jul-23

ICMD 16-Aug-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 11 Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - Exception 

Orders to identify those restricted roads that will 

remain 30mph in September 2023 instead of 

defaulting to 20mph  
Mark Hand

ICMD 16-Aug-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 10  Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - prohibition 

of driving Pwll Du, Llanelly Hill and Belmont 

Close/Belmont Road Abergavenny Mark Hand

ICMD 02-Aug-23

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 1 held 

on 22nd June 2023

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Dave Jarrett

ICMD 02-Aug-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 10 

deferred to August 16th

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - Exception 

Orders to identify those restricted roads that will 

remain 30mph in September 2023 instead of 

defaulting to 20mph  
Mark Hand 3-Oct-22

Cabinet 26-Jul-23

Implementation of the My Day My Life review 

recommendations

Ceri York

P
age 59



Cabinet 26-Jul-23

Gypsy and Traveller Site Identification

Ian Bakewell 12-Jul-23

Cabinet 26-Jul-23

•	Review of the Respite Opportunities Service 

Ceri York 14-Mar-23

Cabinet 26-Jul-23

2023/24 Revenue budget progress – early update

Jon Davies 8-Jun-23

Cabinet 26-Jul-23

S016 Funding Castle Park and Arch Bishop Rowan 

Williams Schools.

Cath Saunders 13-Jun-23

Council 20-Jul-23

Gifts & Hospitality Report 

Matt Phillips 12-Jun-23

Council 20-Jul-23

Freedom of the Borough Presentation

Joe Skidmore 5-May-23

Council 20-Jul-23

Recruitment of Local Access Forum To agree arrangements for the recruitment of the 

Monmouthshire Local Access Forum for the next 

3 year period of appointment Matthew Lewis 21-Jun-23

ICMD 12-Jul-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 10 

DEFERRED TO 16TH AUG

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - prohibition 

of driving Pwll Du, Llanelly Hill

Mark Hand 19-May-23

ICMD 12-Jul-23 transfer the school balances for both Deri View 

and King Henry VIII School to the new King 

Henry VIII 3 – 19 School. 

Rachel Garrick - Resources
Both King Henry VIII school and Deri View Primary 

school are closing on 31st August 2023 and the new 

King Henry VIII 3 – 19 School will open on 1st 

September 2023, under a statutory closure of schools 

the financial balances transfer to the Local Authority, 

Nikki Wellington 4-Apr-23

05-Jul-23

Reopen Monmouth Cemetery for new burials

Rhian Jackson

P
age 60



Cabinet 05-Jul-23

RESERVATION OF GRAVE PLOTS To seek cabinet approval to cease the provision 

of reserving grave spaces (not incl cremated 

remains plots) in Llanfoist Cemetery Rhian Jackson 7-Nov-22

Cabinet 05-Jul-23

2022/23 Revenue and Capital Monitoring - Outturn 

Report

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Jon Davies 27-Apr-23

ICMD 28-Jun-23

Highway Traffic Regulation Order Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - making 

permanent the part-time prohibition of driving on 

Cross Street and Market Street Abergavenny Mark Hand 6-Jun-23

Council 22-Jun-23

Gwent Public Services Board Well-being plan To approve the Public Services Board’s Well-

being Plan that sets out the steps being taken 

collaboratively by public services to improve 

wellbeing in Gwent ahead of approval by the 

Gwent Public Services Board.

Richard Jones 20-Jan-23

Council 22-Jun-23

Chief Officer Children and Young People’s Report 

2023 

Will McLean 14-Feb-23

Cabinet 07-Jun-23

Adoption of Transforming Chepstow Masterplan Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To adopt the Transforming Chepstow Masterplan, 

co-produced with Chepstow Town Council, to 

inform future regeneration priorities and grant bids
Mark Hand / Dan 

Fordham
3-Oct-22

Cabinet 07-Jun-23

Transforming Towns Strategic Grant regeneration 

priorities and LUF3 bid

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To agree the priority projects for bids for WG 

Strategic grant funding to 24/25 and the 

submission for round 3 of Levelling Up Funding
Mark Hand / Dan 

Fordham
3-Oct-22

Cabinet 07-Jun-23

Proposal to establish a Welsh medium seedling 

school in Monmouth

Cabinet to consider the results of the consultation, 

recommendations and decide whether to publish 

statutory notices. Debbie Graves 27-Mar-23

Cabinet 07-Jun-23

 Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy Rachel Garrick - Resources To endorse the Socially Responsible 

Procurement Strategy

Scott James 22-Aug-22

ICMD 24-May-23

Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 9 Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - including 

Llantrisant 20mph village lane, 40mph through 

road, possibly Llantrisant (Usk to Wentwood) 

50mph; 20mph Gilwern and surrounding villages
Mark Hand 14-Apr-23

P
age 61



Council 18-May-23

Political Balance Report The Council is required to review at, or as soon 

as practicable after, the Council’s annual meeting, 

the representation of different political groups on 

the bodies to which the Council makes 

appointments.  

Matt Phillips 2-Feb-23

Council 18-May-23

Outside Bodies Report To appoint representatives to serve on outside bodies.

Matt Phillips 2-Feb-23

Council 18-May-23

Appointments to Committees To appoint committees together with their 

membership and terms of reference in 

accordance with the Council’s Constitution. Nicola Perry 2-Feb-23

Council 18-May-23

Constitution update For the Monitoring Officer to bring proposed 

amendments and highlight changes made over 

the previous 12 months Matt Phillips 2-Feb-23

Council 18-May-23

Corporate Parenting Strategy 

Diane Corrister 24-Aug-22

Cabinet 17-May-23

Review of Home to School Transport Policy 24/25. Martyn Groucutt - Education The purpose: Is to seek approval to commence 

consultation on proposed amendments to the 

Home to School Transport Policy for the 

academic year 2024/25.
Deb Hill Howells 12-Apr-23

Cabinet 17-May-23

Monnow Street public realm improvements Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To agree how we proceed with proposals for 

Monnow Street public realm following consultation
Mark Hand / Dan 

Fordham
6-Mar-23

ICMD 10-May-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 9  

MOVED TO 24TH MAY

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - including 

Llantrisant 20mph village lane, 40mph through 

road, possibly Llantrisant (Usk to Wentwood) 

50mph; 20mph Gilwern and surrounding villages
Mark Hand 3-Oct-22

Council 20-Apr-23

Motion for the Rivers and Oceans update Deferred - new date  to be advised

Hazel Clatworthy 10-Jan-23

Council 20-Apr-23

Community and Corporate Plan To seek approval of a new Community and 

Corporate Plan that sets the direction for the 

council and county of Monmouthshire, articulating 

the authority’s purpose and priorities alongside 

the steps we will take to deliver these, the 

accountable Cabinet member and the measures 

Matt Gatehouse 6-Feb-23

P
age 62



ICMD 12-Apr-23

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 4 held 

on 9th March 2023

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Dave Jarrett

Cabinet 05-Apr-23

Rapid Rehousing Transition Plan Sara Burch - Inclusive and Active 

Communities

To agree a plan to transition the delivery of 

homelessness that minimises the use of and the 

time homeless applicants spend in temporary 

accommodation

Rebecca Cresswell / 

Ian Bakewell
24-Jan-23

ICMD 22-Mar-23

Non Domestic Rates application for Hardship Relief - 

RESTRICTED

Rachel Garrick - Resources

Ruth Donovan

ICMD 22-Mar-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 8 Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - including 

Monmouth Road, Raglan no right turn onto A40; 

resi permit parking at Exmouth Place, Chepstow 

and Ross Road, Abergavenny; 3T weight 

restriction on Old Wye Bridge Chepstow; waiting 

or parking restrictions at Castle Street, 

Mark Hand

Council 09-Mar-23

Pay Policy To approve the publication of Monmouthshire 

County Council’s Pay Policy, in compliance with 

the Localism Act.” Sally Thomas 1-Feb-23

Council 09-Mar-23

Council Tax Premiums 

Peter Davies 18-Jan-23

Council 09-Mar-23

Capital Strategy & Treasury Strategy

Jon Davies 17-May-22

Council 09-Mar-23

Youth Council

Jade Atkins 7-Dec-22

ICMD 08-Mar-23

Proposed amendment to primary school catchment 

area – Llandenny Village   

Martyn Groucutt - Education

Debbie Graves 10-Jan-23

ICMD 08-Mar-23

Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 8 

DEFERRED TO 22 MARCH

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order - including 

Monmouth Road, Raglan no right turn onto A40; 

resi permit parking at Exmouth Place, Chepstow 

and Ross Road, Abergavenny; 3T weight 

restriction on Old Wye Bridge Chepstow; waiting 

or parking restrictions at Castle Street, 

Mark Hand

P
age 63



Council 02-Mar-23

Final Budget Sign Off including Council Tax 

Resolution 

Jon Davies

Cabinet 01-Mar-23

2023/4 Final Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals

Jon Davies 17-May-22

Cabinet 01-Mar-23

2023/4 WCF/Trust Treasury Fund Investments

Dave Jarrett 17-May-22

Cabinet 01-Mar-23

Month 9 budget monitoring report

Jon Davies 6-Feb-23

Cabinet 01-Mar-23

Monmouthshire ECO Flex ‘Joint Statement of Intent’ 

and Memorandum of Understanding”

Steve Griffiths 16-Nov-22

Cabinet 01-Feb-23

Tudor Street

9-Jan-23

ICMD 25-Jan-23

Highway Traffic Regulation Amendment Order No 7 Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order

Mark Hand 15-Dec-22

ICMD 25-Jan-23

Community Council and Police Precepts - final Rachel Garrick - Resources

Jon Davies 17-May-22

Council 19-Jan-23

‘To determine the name for the new 3-19 School in 

Abergavenny

‘To determine the name for the new 3-19 School 

in Abergavenny

Cath Saunders 28-Nov-22

Council 19-Jan-23

Council Diary To confirm the Council Diary 23/24

John Pearson 14-Dec-22

P
age 64



Council 19-Jan-23

Appointments A report for Council to appoint or ratify a number 

of appointments to bodies and positions

Matt Phillips

Council 19-Jan-23

Community and Corporate Plan

Council 19-Jan-23

Tudor Road Call-In

Nicola Perry 3-Jan-23

Council 19-Jan-23

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Ruth Donovan 31-May-22

Cabinet 18-Jan-23

Garden Waste

Carl Touhig 21-Dec-22

Cabinet 18-Jan-23

Draft Revenue & Capital Proposals

Jon Davies

Cabinet 18-Jan-23

Council Tax Premiums Consultation - Long Term 

Empty Properties and Second Homes

Ruth Donovan

Cabinet 18-Jan-23

Proposal to establish a Welsh Medium Seedling 

school in Monmouth

To seek cabinet approval to commence statutory 

consultation processes to establish a Welsh 

Medium seedling provision in Monmouth. Debbie Graves 23-Sep-22

ICMD 11-Jan-23

Clydach Ironworks Enhancement Sara Burch - Inclusive and Active 

Communities
To seek approval for the transfer of land 

associated with the Clydach Ironworks 

Enhancement Scheme

Matthew Lewis 8-Dec-23

ICMD 11-Jan-23

Welsh Church Fund Working Group

Dave Jarrett 17-May-22

P
age 65



ICMD 14-Dec-22

Council Tax Base report

Ruth Donovan 31-May-22

ICMD 14-Dec-22

2023/4 Community Council & Police Precepts - draft

Jon Davies 17-May-22

Cabinet 07-Dec-22

Regional Integration Fund To consider the financial liabilities and 

implications of the Regional Integration Fund and 

its tapered funding model. Jane Rodgers 21-Nov-22

Cabinet 07-Dec-22
 National Adoption Services and Foster Wales Joint 

Committee
Jane Rodgers 9-Nov-22

Cabinet 07-Dec-22
2022/23 Revenue and Capital Monitoring report - 

Month 6
Jon Davies 17-May-22

Council 01-Dec-22
Corporate Safeguarding Policy. For Council to endorse the revised Corporate 

Safeguarding Policy.
Jane Rodgers 10-Nov-22

Council 01-Dec-22
Governance & Audit Committee Annual Report 

2021/22
Andrew Wathan 18-Oct-22

Council 01-Dec-22
RLDP Preferred Strategy Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To seek Council endorsement of the new 

Preferred Strategy for eight week consultation 

over December and January

Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
25-Jul-22

ICMD 30-Nov-22
TUDOR STREET

To seek a decision regarding the Council’s forward use 

of the property located in Tudor Street ahead of the 

outcomes of the wider review of My Day My Life 

Jane Rodgers 14-Nov-22

ICMD 30-Nov-22
Govilon Section 106 Funding for Recreation & Play Rachel Garrick - Resources

Mike Moran 8-Nov-22

ICMD 30-Nov-22
Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 5 Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment
Mark Hand 3-Oct-22

ICMD 30-Nov-22
Planning Annual Performance Report (APR) 

Deferred to 30-Nov-22

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy
Mark Hand Phil 

Thomas
3-Oct-22

ICMD 30-Nov-22
Highways Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 6 Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Agreement to make the traffic order
Mark Hand 23-Aug-22

Cabinet 09-Nov-22
Implementing Sharepoint online To secure funding to implement the project

Sian Hayward 13-Oct-22

Cabinet 09-Nov-22
A County of Sanctuary

To set out the reasons why an earlier decision is 

required due to time restrictions associated with TAN 

15.

Matt Gatehouse  20-Sep-22

Cabinet 09-Nov-22

SPF Update Report 

Hannah Jones 12-Sep-22

Cabinet 09-Nov-22 Revenue & Capital MTFP update and process Jon Davies 17-May-22

Cabinet 09-Nov-22
MonLife Heritage Strategy (or ICMD) DEFERRED  

Matthew Lewis 10-Feb-22

P
age 66



Council 27-Oct-22
RESPONSE TO URGENT NEED FOR HOUSING 

ACCOMMODATION

To present a proposal to enable Council to 

respond flexibly and promptly to the urgent need 

for housing accommodation, to address the 

Cath Fallon 10-Oct-22

Council 27-Oct-22
Community and Corporate Plan To seek endorsement of the new Community and 

Corporate Plan setting out the purpose, values 

and priorities for the organisation along with a 

Matt Gatehouse / Paul 

Matthews
3-Oct-22

Council 27-Oct-22
Outside Bodies Appointment

John Pearson 3-Oct-22

Council 27-Oct-22 Annual Safeguarding Report Kelly Turner 24-Aug-22

Council 27-Oct-22 Social Care & Health: Directors Report 2021/22 Jane Rodgers 6-Jul-22

ICMD 26-Oct-22 Welsh Church Fund Working Group Dave Jarrett 14/7/22

Cabinet 19-Oct-22
PSOW annual letter Present the Public Services Ombudsman For 

Wales’ annual report as required by the letter 

received Aug 22

Matt Phillips 28-Sep-22

Cabinet 19-Oct-22
Regional Partnership Board - Gwent Market Position 

Statement

To provide a Market Stability Report produced by 

the Regional Partnership Board setting out  a high 

level overview and Assessment of care & support, 

Phil Diamond Head of 

Regional Partnership 

Team

22-Sep-22

Cabinet 19-Oct-22
Community and Corporate Plan To seek endorsement of the new Community and 

Corporate Plan setting out the purpose, values 

and priorities for the organisation along with a 

Matt Gatehouse / Paul Matthews 20-Sep-22

Cabinet 19-Oct-22
22/23 Revenue and Capital Monitoring report - 

Month 4
Jon Davies 17-May-22

Cabinet 19-Oct-22
Land adjacent to Caldicot Comprehensive School - 

Housing Development Opportunity

To seek approval of the disposal of land at 

Caldicot Comprehensive School for the 

Development of 100% affordable housing

Nick Keyse

ICMD 12-Oct-22
Local Development Annual Monitoring Report (AMR DEFERRED TO 26 OCT Rachel Lewis/Cllr Paul 

Griffiths
23/08/22

ICMD 12-Oct-22
Welsh Church Fund Working Group DEFERRED TO 26 OCT

Dave Jarrett 14/07/22

ICMD 12-Oct-22
Ending Library Fines

To approve the abolition of library fines on all books 

enabling more people to enjoy reading without the 

worry of incurring a fine if they are unable to return 

Cheryl 

Haskell/Fookes?
20-Sep-22

ICMD 28-Sep-22
Transport Policy

Deb Hill Howells - MG 22-Aug-22

ICMD 28-Sep-22
B4245 speed limit DEFERRED TO 26 OCT

Mark Hand 18-Jul-22

Council 27-Sep-22 Nick John 24-Aug-22

Council 27-Sep-22 RLDP Options Report Rachel Lewis 25-Jul-22

Council 27-Sep-22
Rivers and Ocean

Hazel Clatworthy 9-Jun-22

Council 27-Sep-22
Monmouthshire County Council self - assessment 

report 2021/2
Richard Jones 23-May-22

ICMD 14-Sep-22
Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 2 held 

on 21st July 2022 (no meeting/no report  - 

withdrawn)

Dave Jarrett 17-May-22

Cabinet 07-Sep-22
Transport Policy Consultation Update.

Deb Hill Howells 22-Aug-22

Cabinet 07-Sep-22
Cost Of Living

Matt Phillips 25-Jul-22

ICMD 31-Aug-22
MY DAY, MY LIFE SERVICE EVALUTATION

Ceri York 15-Aug-22

ICMD 31-Aug-22
Homesearch Policy &Procedure - Amendments & 

Welsh Translation Requirement
Ian Bakewell

P
age 67



ICMD 03-Aug-22
Additional Resources in Educations Strategy Resources required to develop and maintain 

schools education systems and the implementatin 

of WG Ed Tech Programme

Sian Hayward 14-Jun-22

ICMD 03-Aug-22
Designation of Secondary Catchment Areas 

Matthew Jones 6-Jun-22

ICMD 03-Aug-22
Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 1 held 

on 23rd June 2022  - Moved to ICMD 3rd Aug 2022
Dave Jarrett

Cabinet 27-Jul-22
Wye Valley Villages Future Improvement Plan

Mark Hand 1-Jul-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Regen Three Year Programme

Mark Hand 1-Jul-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Review of Chepstow High Street closure

Mark Hand 1-Jul-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Home to School Transport Policy 2023-24.

Deb Hill Howells 27-Jun-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

MUCH (Magor & Undy Community Hall) report

Nick Keys 9-Jun-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Shared Prosperity Fund Local Investment Plan and 

Regional Lead Authority Arrangements Hannah Jones 23-May-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 1 held 

on 23rd June 2022  - Moved to ICMD 3rd Aug 2022 Dave Jarrett 17-May-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

2021/22 Revenue and Capital Monitoring outturn

Peter Davies/Jon Davies 17-Feb-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Play Sufficiency Assessment and Action Plan 22/23 

Matthew Lewis 10-Feb-22

Cabinet 27-Jul-22

Housing Support Programme Strategy (Homeless 

Strategy) Ian Bakewell

Cabinet

P
age 68


	Agenda
	4 Arolygiad Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru
	CIW Inspection Scrutiny July2024
	240502-monmouthshire-pei-report-en_0 (2)

	6 Blaenraglen Waith a Rhestr Weithredu'r Pwyllgor Craffu Pobl
	7 Cynllunydd Gwaith y Cyngor a'r Cabinet

